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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors, | hereby present the annual
report of Vitop Bioenergy Holdings Limited for the year ended 30
June 2013.

OPERATION REVIEW

The year under review represented the pinnacle of our strategic
optimisation as our healthcare product experience and customisation
programme was pioneered and launched in China. First of all, the
programme offers comprehensively enhanced versions of our self-
developed and manufactured BlOenergy products, such as tailor-
made multi-functional BlOenergy pillows (covering two product
lines), customised BlOenergy Healthy Sleeping System and made-to-
order BlOenergy healthy knee braces, waist supports and supportive
vests. Secondly, the Group has developed and manufactured moulds
to produce made-to-order water purifiers featuring its proprietary
BlOenergy function. Thirdly, the Group has also developed and
manufactured moulds for the production of tailor-made Vitop multi-
functional ionisers (such as air purifiers and highly potent anion
generators) with its unique technology. The above products were
already launched under our customisation marketing programme in
various cities in Mainland China.

During the year under review, a severe measure was taken
nationwide by the central government to prohibit illegal production
of, illegal operation of, illegal ingredients in and illegal marketing
of healthcare food products (hereinafter referred to as the “Four
Prohibitions”), which has badly battered consumers’ interests in
healthcare products. Meanwhile, our previous marketing model
was outdated and the market competition was intensifying. Beyond
that, the delay in the research, development and production of
the aforementioned new customised products has also hindered
their timely launch. Due to the above factors, the Group failed to
achieve its sales target during the year. It recorded sales revenue
of HK$19.82 million, representing a slight decrease of HK$0.66
million or 3.22% as compared with that of last year. Nonetheless,
benefiting from the altered sales product mix by selling more higher
gross margin products, the Group’s gross profit margin for the year
was 51.16% (2012: 34.84%), representing an increase of 16.32
percentage points from last year.
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Chairman’s Statement

BUSINESS PROSPECTS EERE

Clarify the operating strategy and continue
optimisation at full speed

Since January 2013, the Group has formulated a clear and
applicable new operating strategy. On the product level, we
have identified three spotlighted and sustainable product series
that focus on health and environmental protection for further
development.

— BHEERKE 2EEASTNY
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1.  The Healthy Sunlight series: The core products of this 1. (e Ko : AR £ 18 %
series include BlOenergy functional textiles (including BREFN WESHRHEE - BRI
BlOenergy Sunlight for Life products) (the “Healthy BREEMEBRGTITRFEENRE
Sunlight Series”), which capitalise on various patented =Meem (REX [EwmiEi]
inventions of the Group. These products were granted Em BRG] R3))ER
Chinese Famous-brand Products and China Well-known 1% EE m ©
Trademark and named as the leading brand to establish
industry standard.

2. The Healthy and Tasty Water series: The core products 2. [fEREAFK] BT : 2% T gg &K
of this series include multi-functional water generators, H# - T BE B BR KM T K 88 Az 0
functional water dispensers and water purifiers. The Em ASEEZRAHEENTNLE
Group has sold approximately 190,000 multi-functional BE LR RFIKES  FEITE
water generators and water purifiers with a good MEBEFERE —TEHWAEE-
reputation in the industry and among consumers.

3. The Healthy and Fresh Air series: The core products of 3. (e Z=ER] R : AZERF

this series include 2-in-1 air purifier and ioniser. With
firm control of the core development technologies of
ionisers, the Group has developed new multi-functional
ionisers that can eliminate up to 99% of PM2.5 and
up to 80% of formaldehyde and emit highly potent
anion within 2 metres, and have passed the tests of the
national authorities. This technology has achieved leading
performances under international standards.

Implement overhaul of the research and
development, production and sales operations
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and pioneer the first domestic healthcare EREMRX

product experience and customisation

programme

1. BlOenergy functional textiles: Three product lines are 1. RERDVgEmEm - BEE=-[EZR

now available for tailor-made orders. The first line
comprises BlOenergy memory foam butterfly-shaped
pillows and BlOenergy complex neck-protective pillows.
For BlOenergy body protection products, three product
lines, namely knee braces, waist supports and supportive
vests, are also available for tailor-made orders. Thirdly,
BlOenergy Healthy Sleeping System is now fully available
for tailor-made orders.
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Chairman’s Statement

2. Functional water purifiers: We have already developed
new functional water purifiers that are perfectly suited
to the water quality in China and cater for the domestic
consumption habits. The Group has successfully
developed and produced functional water purifiers
featuring the core technologies of our products, our
proprietary intellectual properties and our patented
invention. The quality of these products is comparable
to that of leading international brands. Moreover, these
products can be customised in terms of functions,
colours, patterns and so on in order to suit the different
requirements of each consumer.

3. lonisers: In the past, our ionisers were converted
under our collaboration with air-conditioning fans
manufacturers, so the quality was beyond our control.
However, the stability, quality and design of the products
are now enhanced with the establishment of our self-
owned assembly plants. Moreover, they can now be
customised in terms of functions, colours, patterns and
so on in order to suit the different requirements of each
consumer.

Pragmatically adjust marketing model and
be dedicated to exploring the middle-aged
consumer group

It is on the Group’s schedule that, by the end of 2014, our
marketing model will be gradually shifted from the declining
“conference marketing” channel or model to a marketing
model using new channels such as roadshows at counters and
regional experience and customisation stores (exclusive shops).
Trial counters and stores have been established in over 100
small and medium cities.

Seeking for investment opportunities in
different industries that could enhance
corporate development and broaden the
income base of the Group

As disclosed in the announcement dated 12 August 2011
issued by the Company, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement on 2 August 2011 for the acquisition
of 90% shareholding in Express Time Enterprises Limited
(“Express Time”), a company which indirectly owns 74%
interest in a piece of land situated in Xuzhou City, Jiangsu,
the People’'s Republic of China which can be used for
commercial building development, at the consideration of
HK$108.5 million. The proposed acquisition constitutes a major
acquisition for the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement

The sale and purchase agreement for the proposed acquisition
was subsequently amended by a first supplemental agreement
dated 30 March 2012, a second supplemental agreement
dated 27 December 2012 and a third supplemental agreement
dated 30 June 2013, pursuant to which the long stop date for
the fulfillment of the conditions precedent to the completion of
the proposed acquisition has been postponed to 31 December
2013.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement of 30 September
2013, despatch of the circular for the aforesaid proposed
acquisition would be postponed to a date not later than 31
December 2013. The Company is currently in the process of
preparing the circular, as additional time is required to prepare
the financial information of the Company and its subsidiaries
and of Express Time and its subsidiaries to be included in the
circular.

The board of directors is of the view that, notwithstanding the
time lapse since August 2011, the proposed acquisition will still
be beneficial to the Company and its shareholders as a whole
when completed, since the board of directors expects that the
commercial building development on the land in Xuzhou City
and the entering into of the whole-sale market business can
diversify the Group’s business and will bring a sustainable and
steady cash flow to the Company.

Although there has been an extended delay in completing the
proposed acquisition, the Group has not incurred substantial
amount of costs or fees in relation thereto since August 2011.
Further, the extended delay is due to the vendor’s failure
to timely provide the outstanding financial information as
aforementioned (despite repeated requests of the Company)
and which is not within the control of the board of directors.
The Company will continue to exert pressure on the vendor to
obtain the outstanding financial information in order to publish
the relevant circular and complete the proposed acquisition as
soon as possible.
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Chairman’s Statement

APPRECIATION

As the joint chairman of the board of directors, | would like to
express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers,
suppliers and business partners for their full understanding and
staunch support during the hard time. The Group’s steady growth in
the Chinese healthcare industry over the past 21 years has relied on
the joint efforts and contributions of all our partners. | believe, with
such support, the experience and brand advantages built up over
these 21 years, and the dedication of all our shareholders and staff,
the Group will be able to keep abreast with the time and step into
another stage of development.

Han Xiao Yue
Joint Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 September 2013

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
REEMERBR DA

II',I LT Ni“hluA . | II“”“! i .|.|I‘|l' ¥ ||l-.“r|. |11 n.'.--,ﬁ

ERRE

g

FREFEBRER AATORASMK
R BEP HEBREBBHAERBREDY
AEENFEDEBMB NS AEE -+ —
FRETERBITENRBER AESBH
MARB N RBE - ATELEXE BERN
KSE_T—FREEIRNKERNDEEE A
REMBBRRMBEINENT  KNEE—EA
PABREF R EAS —EERMER-

HETE
LT

BB —ET—=FNHA=1H



MO ALt AR Y

A
L B I “r- A liad

Management Discussion and
Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group recorded sales revenue of HK$19.82 million, representing
a slightly decrease of HK$0.66 million or 3.22% as compared with
that of last year. The slightly decrease in overall sale revenue was
mainly due to the unfashionable marketing mode and the keen
competition.

Gross profit

Benefiting from the altered sales product mix by selling more higher
gross margin products, the Group’s gross profit margin for the year
was 51.16% (2012: 34.84%), representing an increase of 16.32
percentage points from last year.

Selling and distribution costs

Selling and distribution costs for the year amounted to HK$7.54
million representing increase of 5.6% or HK$0.4 million when
compared to last year (2012: HK$7.14 million). The slightly increase
of HK$0.4 million was mainly attributed to the combined effects of
the decrease in promotion expenses by HK$1.06 million and the
increase in rental expenses by HK$0.78 million during the year.

Administrative expenses

During the year, administrative expenses remained stables at
HK$18.16 million (2012: HK$18.16 million), representing 91.62%
(2012: 88.67%) of the Group’s revenue, which was a result of
effective cost control of the Group.

Loss for the year

The Group’s loss for the year amounted to HK$14.59 million,
representing a decrease of 27.2% or HK$5.45 million when
compared to last year (2012: loss of HK$20.04 million). The
decrease of the Group’s loss was mainly attributed to the combined
effects of the increase in gross profit by HK$3.0 million and the
decrease in other operating expenses by HK$0.91 million during the
year.
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Management Discussion and
Analysis

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 30 June 2013, the Group employed a total of 112 (2012: 107)
employees, of which 108 were deployed in Mainland China (2012:
103) and 4 (2012: 4) were deployed in Hong Kong. The total salaries
(excluding directors’ emoluments) for the year was HK$10.41 million
(2012: HK$10.17 million). Remuneration packages comprised salary,
mandatory provident fund, bonus, medical allowance and share
options.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK AND
MANAGEMENT

The majority of the Group’s operations are located in Mainland
China, and the main operational currencies are Hong Kong Dollars
and Renminbi. The Company pays regular and active attention
to Renminbi exchange rate fluctuation and consistently assesses
exchange risks.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCE

As at 30 June 2013, the Group was in a net cash position and has
sufficient funding to pay off all the outstanding liabilities, and meet
its working capital requirement. The Group’s cash and bank balance
at that date amounted to HK$27.57 million (2012: HK$41.24
million), which was denominated in mainly Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. The Group had no outstanding bank borrowing and no
banking facilities available.

As at 30 June 2013, the Group’s current ratio and quick ratio were
4.25 (2012: 5.02) and 3.47 (2012: 4.14) respectively.

On 18 July 2011, the Company completed a right issue.
294,261,987 rights shares on the basis of one rights share for every
three Shares held were issue pursuant to the rights issue. The net
proceeds of HK$70.1 million were for general working capital.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Neither the Group nor the Company had any significant contingent
liabilities at the end of the reporting period.
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Management Discussion and
Analysis

PROSPECTS

Amid uncertainties over the global economic recovery, Mainland
China’s economic growth tends to slow but sees to adjust and
transform on a more sustainable growth path. The continuous
increase of investment by the central government in deepening the
healthcare reforms and the accelerated demand in urban and rural
areas will give momentum to the development and expansion of
Mainland China’s healthcare product market.

To ensure growth is sustained over the long term, the Group will
continue to leverage its research and development expertise to
develop products desired by consumers. The Group continues to
explore new products this year and expecting these products will
bring favourable results for the Group in the coming year. The
Group continues to optimize its product mix and put more efforts to
develop higher profit margin’s products to improve its sales and its
profitability.

The Group also adopted measures and exploring other means to
meet these challenges and to turn them into opportunities. The
management will from time to time seek for investment opportunity
in difference industry that could enhance corporate development and
broaden the income base of the Group. Meanwhile, the management
will continue to review the performance of existing businesses and
seek for any investment opportunity in fast growing industry. Should
any suitable business opportunity arise, the Group may change its
existing business activities and redeploy any assets of the Group. The
management remains cautiously optimistic about perpetuating the
Group’s steady growth over the long term.
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Report of the Directors

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of Vitop Bioenergy Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are manufacturing and trading
of multifunctional water generators, BlOenergy products, healthcare
food products and other healthcare products in the People’s
Republic of China, excluding Hong Kong and Macau.

RESULT AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 and the
state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at that date are set
out in the audited financial statements on pages 34 to 111.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend to
shareholders of the Company for the years ended 30 June 2013 and
2012 respectively.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and the assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 112. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the Group’s property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in note 14 to the audited
financial statements.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Details of the movement in the Group’s intangible assets during the
year is set out in note 15 to the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons therefore, are
set out in notes 25 and 26 to the audited financial statements,
respectively.
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Report of the Directors

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, there were no purchase, sale or redemption by the
Company, or any its subsidiaries, of the Company'’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and note 27 to the audited financial statements,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2013, the Company’s reserve available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted
to HK$97.28 million. This includes the Company’s share premium
account, in the capital amount of HK$174.78 million as at 30 June
2013, which may be distributed provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they
fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share premium
account may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the percentage of sales to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for 16.56% of the Group’s total
sales for the year and sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to 4.79%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for 27.47% of the total purchases for the year
and purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted
to 8.82%.
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Report of the Directors

To the best knowledge of the directors, neither the directors, their
associates, nor any shareholders who owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and/or five largest suppliers during the
year.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Qing Yun (Chairman)

Dr. Han Xiao Yue (Joint Chairman)
Mr. Xu Nian Chun

Ms. Guo Yan Ni

Mr. Long Ming Fei

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Zhu Jing Hua

Mr. Zhang Wen

Mr. Li Xin Zhong

In accordance with article 87(1) of the article of association of the
Company, Ms. Guo Yan Ni, Mr. Long Ming Fei and Mr. Li Xin Zhong
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company. Ms. Guo Yan Ni, Mr. Long Ming Fei and Mr. Li Xin
Zhong being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
meeting.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 20 to 22 of the
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Han Qing Yun, Dr. Han Xiao Yue, Mr. Xu Nian Chun,
Ms. Guo Yan Ni, Mr. Long Ming Fei, Ms. Zhu Jing Hua, Mr. Zhang
Wen and Mr. Li Xin Zhong, has not entered into a director’s service
agreement with the Company. They are not appointed for a specific
term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company. Either the Company or they
may terminate the appointment by giving a least three months’ notice
in writing.
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Report of the Directors

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company, which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 31 to the audited financial statements
under the heading “Related Party Transactions”, there were no
other contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interests, whether or any directly or indirectly subsisting at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST AND SHORT
POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2013, the interests and short positions of the directors
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”),
were as follows:—

Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
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Han Qing Yun Interest of controlled 200,000,000
corporation (note 1)
BEE REEEE R #E = (PfF=EL)
Han Xiao Yue Interest of controlled 3,805,112
corporation (note 2)
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Report of the Directors

Note 1:

181,843,836 shares held by Wide Cosmos International Holdings Co. Limited
which is beneficially owned by Mr. Han Qing Yun. Mr. Han Qing Yun also
personally holds 18,156,164 shares in the Company.

Note 2:

These 3,805,112 shares are owned by Portton Investments Limited
(“Portton”), the issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by Dr. Han
Xiao Yue (the joint-chairman of the Company) and Mr. Wang Jian Dong as to
66.67% and 33.33% respectively. Each of Dr. Han Xiao Yue and Mr. Wang
Jian Dong are deemed to be interested in these 3,805,112 shares under Part
XV of the SFO. Portton is wholly owned by Power Field International Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2013, none of the directors
of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO, or otherwise to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fee is subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meeting. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors or its remuneration committee with reference to directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosures in note 26
to the audited financial statements, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities including debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate and none of the
directors or their spouses or children under the age of 18 had any
right to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.
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Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 26 to the
audited financial statements.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITION OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER
PERSONS RECORDED IN THE REGISTER
KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE SFO

As at 30 June 2013, so far as the directors of the Company are
aware of and having made due enquires, the interests and short
positions of the substantial shareholders/persons (other than the
directors of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

0ol A N 0o A A AN il i . A Report 2013 imi il
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Beneficial owner (Note 1)

BamlA A (D)

Wide Cosmos International
Holdings Co. Limited

Beijing Securities Limited Beneficial owner

(Note 2)
(F=E2) ExnlEA A
Premium Castle Limited Interest in

(Note 2) controlled corporation
(PfF5E2) REEAE R E =

Lo Ming Chi Charles Interest in
(Note 2) controlled corporation
(Ht5E2) RZ LB RS

Suen Cho Hung, Paul Interest in
(Note 2) controlled corporation
(Hi&E2) REEEE R E S

Beneficial owner

BEaBEAA

Global Trade Center
Holdings Co. Limited
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181,843,836 181,843,836 13.08%
104,760,925 104,760,925 7.53%
104,760,925 104,760,925 7.53%
104,760,925 104,760,925 7.53%
104,760,925 104,760,925 7.53%

93,360,000 93,360,000 6.71%
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Report of the Directors

Note 1:

Wide Cosmos International Holdings Co. Limited is beneficial owned by Mr.
Han Qing Yun, the chairman of the Company.

Note 2:

The 104,760,925 shares were held by Beijing Securities Limited, which was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Premium Castle Limited. The issued share capital
of Premium Castle Limited was held as to 39% by Suen Cho Hung, Paul and
as to 36.28% by Lo Ming Chi Charles.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2013, no person, other than
the directors of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
“Director’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures” above, had an interest or a short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of the
directors of the Company is interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of not less than
25% of the Company’s issued shares are required under the Listing
Rules.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive director the annual confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company based
on such confirmation, considers that the three independent non-
executive directors of the Company are independent as at the date of
this annual report.
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Report of the Directors

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

On 7 December 2012, Pan-China (H.K.) CPA Limited ceased to
be the auditors of the Company. Elite Partners CPA Limited was
appointed as the auditors of the Company on 18 February 2013.

The Company’s auditors, Elite Partners CPA Limited, who retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re- appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of Elite Partners CPA Limited as the Company’s
auditors will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Han Xiao Yue
Joint Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 September 2013
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Biography of Directors and
Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Han Qing Yun (8B %), aged 54, is an executive director and
chairman of the Company. Mr. Han joined the Group in April 2008.
Mr. Han graduated from the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences
in 1998. Mr. Han is a highly successful entrepreneur in Mainland
China and has substantial experience in enterprise operations and
management. He currently also acts as the chairman of Guangdong
Bo Ao Hong Ji Investment Company Limited. Previous to this, he was
the chairman of his own founded Tai Gu Real Estate Development
Company Limited and responsible for the operation of that company
for years.

Dr. Han Xiao Yue (SMEEE) aged 51, is an executive director
and joint chairman of the Company. Dr. Han joined the Group in
April 2007. Dr. Han holds a Bachelor Degree of Computer Science
from Tsinghua University, Beijing and a PhD in Finance from the
University of Texas, the United States. He has over 22 years’ of
experience in investment banking and has worked for multi-national
securities firms such as Merrill Lynch and Societe Generale. He
has involved actively in large-scale investment projects in Mainland
China and has rich experience in investment management. Dr. Han
had been appointed as an executive director and the chief executive
officer of Sino Gas Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange. He is well-versed with the operation and management of
the listed company.

Ms. Guo Yan Ni (¥B#&HE), aged 44, is an executive director of
the Company. Ms. Guo joined the Group in April 2008. Ms. Guo
graduated from the Zhanjiang Ocean University and majoring in
finance and accounting. Ms. Guo has years of experience in financial
and accounting and financial management. She acted as the
treasurer in the finance department of the Huazhou City Agricultural,
Industrial and Commercial Supply Company, and acted as the
financial controller of the finance department the Guangzhou Yayuan
Real Estates Company Limited for years.

Mr. Long Ming Fei (REBA#), aged 41, is an executive director
of the Company. Mr. Long joined the Group in April 2008. Mr.
Long graduated from Industrial and Civil Construction Department
of South China University of Technology in 1994 and is an
intermediate engineer. Mr. Long has years of experience in corporate
management. He has been the manager of cost management
department in Guang Dong Yitao Group Co., Ltd. and became the
manager of investment department in Guang Dong Yitao Group Co.,
Ltd. since 2008.
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Biography of Directors and
Senior Management

Mr. Xu Nian Chun (#&&#), aged 68, is an executive director
of the Company. Mr. Xu joined the Group in April 2008. Mr. Xu
graduated from the Nanjing University of Chemical Technology and is
a senior engineer. He has engaged in the management of petroleum
and chemical systems for years and has substantial experience in
management. He acted as the general manager of Southern China
Supply Company of the Ministry of Chemical Industry and was
awarded for his substantial contributions by the State Council. He
currently acts as the deputy chairman of Shenzhen China Petroleum
Tong Da Company (&I A M E A AR ).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Xin Zhong (ZEH ), aged 55, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company since February
2008. After graduating from Nankai University in 1983 with a degree
in Economics, Mr. Li spent seven years working in Mainland China
as a lecturer, part-time lawyer and the deputy general manager
of a consulting firm in Tianjian before receiving his LL.M. degree
at the University of London in 1991. Mr. Li joined Miramar Group
as an advisor of China affairs in 1992 and then joined Peregrine
Capital Limited in 1993 and became a director in 1996. He spent
two years with Alta Capital (H.K.) Limited as an executive director
before joining BNP Paribas Peregerine Capital Limited in 2000 as
an executive director. He joined Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance
Limited in 2003 as a director and then joined DBS Asia Capital
Limited as China Team Head of Mergers and Acquisitions in June
2004 responsible for origination of China related corporate finance
transactions. He is currently a director and senior consultant of
shenzhen Sino-Source Investment Consulting Company. Mr. Li has
over 18 years of experience in corporate finance.

Mr. Zhang Wen (3 3X), aged 45, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company since April
2008. Mr. Zhang graduated from the University of Hong Kong with
a master of business and administration and from the postgraduate
class of the postgraduate department of the Shenzhen University.
From 2006 till now, he has been the deputy general manager of New
Smart Energy Group Limited. Previous to this, he was the deputy
president of China Natural Oil And Gas Co., Ltd. and the managing
director of Poliwell International Limited for years and accumulated
substantial experience in corporate management.
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Biography of Directors and
Senior Management

Ms. Zhu Jing Hua (% &%), aged 71, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company since April
2008. Ms. Zhu graduated from the Dongbei University of Finance
and Economics and became a senior accountant in October 1992.
She was approved as a chartered accountant by the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in April 1994. She has worked for
the Ministry of Chemical Industry, holding positions of the deputy
director and the director of the production for outlet and supply
and marketing department of the Ministry of Chemical Industry, the
deputy chief of the Bureau of Economics of the Ministry of Chemical
Industry, the chief of the Bureau of Finance of the Ministry of
Chemical Industry, the deputy chief accountant of State Bureau of
Petroleum and Chemical Industries. She currently acts as the deputy
president of China Petroleum and Chemical Industry Association.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Jia Yao (EXRE), aged 47, rejoined the Group in May 2008
as an administrative vice general manager of Vitop Bioenergy (China)
Limited and is responsible for the Group’s marketing and promotion,
corporate planning and staff training. Mr. Li was re-designated as
a general manager of Vitop Bioenergy (China) Limited in February
2012 and is responsible of the Group’s overall business in Mainland
China. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Laws from Wuhan University
and a Master Degree in Communication from Xiamen University.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Li has been appointed as the president
of Beijing Genecare Biotechnology Limited and Beijing Genecare
Water Treatment Technology Co., Limited, two renowned corporates
in Mainland China. Meanwhile, Mr. Li has been the consultant
experts of various famous China corporates. Mr. Li has accumulated
substantial experience in corporate management as well as strategy
planning and management for the health care products related
market.

Mr. Yeung Man, Simon (##), aged 41, is the financial controller
of the Group. Mr. Yeung joined the Group in November 2004 and
is responsible for the financial and internal control of the Group.
He graduated from the University of Georgia, the United States
of America with a Bachelor degree in Accounting and a Bachelor
degree in Finance and Banking. Mr. Yeung is an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Prior to joining the Group, he worked in an international accounting
firm. He has over 16 years of experience in auditing, finance,
accounting and business management.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to establishing and maintaining high
standards of corporate governance. The directors of the Company
believe that sound and reasonable corporate governance practices
are essential for the growth of the Group and for safeguarding and
maximizing shareholders’ interests.

During the year, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules, except for the deviations from code provisions A.1.1,
A.2.1,A4.1, Ab.1, A6.7 and E.1.2 as stated and explained below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers at set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code for
securities transactions by Directors. All members of the Boards have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code
during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Qing Yun (Chairman)

Dr. Han Xiao Yue (Joint-Chairman)
Mr. Xu Nian Chun

Ms. Guo Yan Ni

Mr. Long Ming Fei

Independent Non-executive Director
Ms. Zhu Jing Hua

Mr. Zhang Wen

Mr. Li Xin Zhong
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and shall be collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs. The Board formulates overall strategies and
polices of the Group and monitors the performance and activities
of the management. With delegating authorities from the Board,
the management of the Company is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Group under the leadership of the Joint Chairman.
The Company has not separated the roles of the Chairman of the
Board and the Chief Executive as required under code provision
A.2.1 of the Code. The Company believes that separation of
Chairman and the Chief Executive would not result in enhanced
efficiency and improved governance. The balance of power and
authority between the Chief Executive and the Board is ensured
by regular discussion and meetings of the full Board and active
participation of independent non-executive directors.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships among
members of the Board and in particular, between the Chairman and
the Joint Chairman.

Under code provision A.1.1 of the Code, at least four regular board
meetings should be held a year at quarterly intervals with active
participation of a majority of directors of the Company, either in
person or through other electronic means of communication. As the
Company did not announce its quarterly results, two regular board
meetings were held during the year for reviewing and approving
the interim and annual financial performance of the Group. Board
meetings will be held on the occasions when board decisions are
required. Currently, the board is initiating to increase number
of the formal meetings to be held regularly at quarterly intervals
and will involve active participation through electronic means of
communication.
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Corporate Governance Report

During the year, three full board meetings (including two regular
board meetings) were held and the individual attendance of each
director at the board meetings was as follows:

Directors Board meeting General meeting
Attendance Attendance

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Qing Yun (Chairman) 0/3 0/1

Dr. Han Xiao Yue (Joint Chairman) 3/3 1/1

Mr. Xu Nian Chun 0/3 0/1

Ms. Guo Yan Ni 2/3 0/1

Mr. Long Ming Fei 0/3 0/1

Independent Non-executive

Director

Ms. Zhu Jing Hua 3/3 0/1

Mr. Zhang Wen 1/3 0/1

Mr. Li Xin Zhong 1/3 0/1

Code provision A.6.7 of the Code requires that independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors shall attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. Ms. Zhu Jing Hua, Mr. Zhang Wen and Mr. Li Xin
Zhong, all being the independent non-executive Directors, did not
attend the Company’s annual general meeting held on 7 December
2012 due to their other unexpected business engagement.

Under code provision E.1.2 of the Code, the Chairman of the Board
should attend, and the chairman of the audit and remuneration
committees should be available to answer questions at, the annual
general meeting of the Company. Due to prior engagement, the
Chairman of the Board, the audit committee and the remuneration
committee were unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 7 December 2012 in person, but the Chairman of
the Board has already delegated to one of the executive directors of
the Company to chair the meeting on his behalf and on behalf of the
chairmen of the audit committee and the remuneration committee.

For a regular board meeting, notice of at least fourteen days is given
to all directors of the Company, who are given an opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for discussion, and an agenda and
accompanying board papers are sent to all directors of the Company
at least three days before the intended date of a regular board
meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are
kept by the secretary of the Company and are open for inspection
at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any director of the
Company. Draft and final versions of minutes of board meetings are
sent to all directors of the Company for their comment and records
respectively, in both cases within a reasonable time after the board
meeting is held.

Approximate insurance cover has been arranged in respect of legal
action against the directors and officers of the Group.

Non-executive Directors

Under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and be subject to re-election.

The three independent non-executive directors of the Company
were not appointed for a specific term, but are subject to retirement
no later than the third annual general meeting after his election,
under the Company’s articles of association. As such, the Board
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that
the Company’s corporate governance practices are not less exacting
than those in the Code.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The board of directors has been in compliance with Rule 3.10(1)
of the Listing Rules, which requires a company to maintain at least
three independent non-executive directors in the board of directors,
and with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, which requires one of
those independent non-executive directors to be specialised in
accounting or relevant financial management. The Company has
received the confirmation of each of the independent nonexecutive
directors confirming that they are in compliance with Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules in respect of their independence. The Company is
of the opinion that all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The remuneration committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors of the Company, namely Ms. Zhu Jing Hua, Mr.
Zhang Wen and Mr. Li Xin Zhong.

During the year, no remuneration is paid to the directors of the
Company.
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The role and function of the remuneration committee primarily
include reviewing, considering and approving proposals as well as
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure relating to the remuneration of directors and senior
management. During the year, the remuneration committee did not
hold any meeting.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Code A.5.1 provides that the Company should establish a nomination
committee. The Board is empowered under the articles of association
of the Company to appoint any person as a director of the Company
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board.
No nomination committee was established by the Company in view
of the small size of the Board. The Board as a whole is responsible
for considering the suitability of an individual to act as a director of
the Company, and approving and terminating the appointment of a
director of the Company.

The executive directors of the Company are responsible for
selecting and recommending suitable candidates for members of
the Board based on their characters, qualifications, experience
and background, when there is a vacancy or an additional director
is considered necessary. The recommendations of the executive
directors are then put forward for consideration by the Board. The
Chairman and the other directors review from time to time the
composition of the Board. The Board makes recommendations
to shareholders on directors standing for re-election, providing
information on directors to enable shareholders to make an informed
decision on the re-election, and where necessary, to appoint
directors to fill casual vacancies.
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Corporate Governance Report

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the remuneration paid/payable
to the Company’s auditors, Elite Partners CPA Limited, is set out as
follows:

KUY — 2 — = 5 2= 35 AN At A o At oo AR AN v v

ERELHSE

B EN BN &

BE_Z—=FRA=TRHILFE BN &

HZIK’& AIZBER T EREMELAER
DA ST

Audit services EZRTE 700
Non-audit services IEEZ RS 150
Total: et 850

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company was established on 18
January 2002 with written terms of reference which were revised
on 21 March 2005 in compliance with the code provision C.3.3 of
the Code. The audit committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors of the Company, namely Ms. Zhu Jing Hua
(chairman of the committee), Mr. Li Xin Zhong and Mr. Zhang Wen.
Ms. Zhu Jing Hua possesses appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and related financial management expertise as
required under rule 3.10 (2) of the Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the audit committee include the review and
supervision of the financial reporting process and internal control
system, and the review of the interim and annual reports of the
Group.

During the year, two meetings were held by the audit committee to
review the annual report of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2013 and the interim report of the Group for the six months ended
31 December 2012 before submission to the Board for approval, and
to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board. The individual
attendance of each member at the audit committee meetings was as
follows:

Members Attendance
Ms. Zhu Jing Hua 2/2
Mr. Li Xin Zhong 2/2
Mr. Zhang Wen 1/2
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Corporate Governance Report

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES ON THE ACCOUNTS

The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the accounts of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2013.

The statement by Messrs. Elite Partners CPA Limited, the
existing external auditors of the Company, about their reporting
responsibilities on the accounts of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 32 and 33.

As at 30 June 2013, the directors of the Company confirm that,
to the best of their knowledge, information and belief, having
made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company have prepared the
accounts of the Group on a going concern basis.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

During the year, all Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending CPD sessions or reading the
relevant materials to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

(d) to review the Company’'s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to ensure that the Company
maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard
the shareholders’ investments and the Company’s assets. The
internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and the
management rather than elimination of risks associated with the
business activities of the Group.

During the year, the Board has conducted reviews on the
effectiveness of the internal control system as required by the Code
Provisions. The Audit Committee has also reviewed with members
of the management the scope, progress and results of the internal
control review plan and considered that the Group’s internal control
system is effective and adequate.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decisions.

The disclosure of the Group’s information in a reasonable and time
manner by the Board is to facilitate the shareholders as well as the
investors to have better understanding in relation to the business
performance, operations and strategies of the Group.

Through our website at http://www.vitop.com which allow the
Company’s potential and existing investors as well as the public
to assess and acquire the up-to-date company and financial
information.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company, such
as telephone hotline, fax number, email address and postal address,
in order to enable them to make any query that they may have with
respect to the Company. They can also send their enquiries to the
Board through these means. The contact details of the Company are
provided in the annual report and the Company’s website.

The Board welcomes views of shareholders and encourages them
to attend general meetings to raise any concerns they might have
with the Board or the management directly. Board members and
appropriate senior staff of the Group are available at the meetings to
answer any questions raised by shareholders.

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
REEMERER R A

Ll

LT

ERELIWRSE

N

A P B

EXxgRETRARARFNABEERERTT
2R URERROKRERARBNEE -
RIYNFBEERREERREFEEANERRK
MFBERIELSEETRENTEE  LARE
B EAREEXKEE B B ER -

FR EZTQCRETUERXORERT A
EREARNKY - BERREGTCERERE
KB AR SRR B EE R RS
R UTRBAEENAFEIERREE AT
5o

{5 SR A9 il 8

ARBIRBRERRBRBER  HEEREELEH
BEREMREEHARNEEXZHE R LRI
THRBRER -ARATAARAERERE
MEREBENEZN AASKRRERREEE
HEERERTE -

EXeqBEREEASENER  UER
REBREEHAEEXBRER 2ERKEHR
FETH-

BB AR A /A8 (hitp://www.vitop.com )
RARIMBERRBREEUNRARALTA
FEERIRSEINAR R BER -

ARABRARRIBHARREBAZER - PINES
Ry - EERD B RBF U ER
RA{ELEMBEBARRNEH - BRITAE
BEEEREESERER - AR A B
BERNFRRARRBIRM®-

EXEIRRIBHER  USBRELFER
RAG HENEFeXEEERLEAE -E
EERERAEEN S ESABRESNE £
B Z AR R 2R o

o

=



R LA fﬂ“h.\lﬂmwh (AN ML

WALk .'lfi JilvH

Corporate Governance Report

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS
TO CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors, for shareholders’
consideration and voting. Besides, pursuant to the Articles of
Association, any one or more Shareholder(s) holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for putting
forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board of the Company.
Contact details are as follows:

Address: Room 3434-3436, 34/F., Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Fax: 852-2991 4711

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

Constitutional Documents

During the year, there was no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of
Vitop Bioenergy Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Vitop
Bioenergy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 34 to
111, which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 30 June 2013, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that gives a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with agreed term
of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 30 June 2013 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 September 2013

Yip Kai Yin
Practising Certificate Number PO5131

Suites 921-921A, 9/F., Star House,
3 Salisbury Road, Tsimshatsui,
Hong Kong
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Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 30 June 2013

HE-_T—

FRA=THLEFE

Revenue W = 6 19,823 20,484
Cost of sales $HE R A (9,679) (13,348)
Gross profit E A 10,144 7,136
Other income RN 6 3,334 3,739
Gain on disposal of an associate oE —E B E R R 34 =
Selling and distribution costs HE KoK (7,536) (7,142)
Administrative expenses THEEER (18,163) (18,161)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HHBRRMER - (623)
Other operating expenses H it & A (2,401) (3,307)
Loss from operating activities # e E R 7 (14,588) (18,358)
Finance costs B 75 S 8 - (1,648)
(14,588) (20,006)
Share of loss of an associate FEAE— B A Rl EiE 18 - (33)
Loss before income tax expense BrETIS R X AT ET 18 (14,588) (20,039)
Income tax expense FiisfiAx 9 - =
Loss for the year KEEEIE (14,588) (20,039)
Attributable to: TE AL
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZF =N 10 (14,404) (19,860)
Non-controlling interests JEIE R = (184) (179)
Loss for the year KEFFHIE (14,588) (20,039)
Other comprehensive income H b2 HEKa=s
Exchange translation differences BEREEERCELE
recognised directly in equity ] 2,003 (1,682)
Release of translation reserve RS —FE B A R R
upon disposal of a subsidiary BIRE R - 413
2,003 (1,269)

REEMERBRA A

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of e HBER
Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 30 June 2013 BHE_T—=F"A=1+HLFE

Total comprehensive loss for REEZEEHEEEET MKk
the year, net of tax HIE (12,585) (21,308)

Total comprehensive loss attributable T 5l] A £ FE/E 2 [ B 18 42

to: 58

Owners of the Company RRARIER A (12,401) (21,129)

Non-controlling interests JEE RS (184) (179)
(12,585) (21,308)

Loss per share attributable to owners FERARRQ B HEHE AEE K

of the Company during the year ki 12

Basic K HK(1.04) cents #&fll  HK(1.58) cents /&Ll

Diluted s N/A &R N/A T3&E

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
FEMERBRDF
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Consolidated Statement of

Financial Position

As at 30 June 2013

—=%XA=tH

KUY — 2 — = 5 2= 35 AN At A o At oo AR AN v v
REMBRAE

Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB k& E 14 2,288 2,370
Intangible assets EWEE 15 229 258
Available-for-sale investments A EREIEE 17 24,336 28,596
Interests in an associate R—EBE QA S 18 - 3,595
26,853 34,819
Current assets i B E
Inventories FE 19 19,258 18,561
Trade receivables =) A 20 1,415 1,355
Deposits, prepayments and other e BAREREMEKR 21
receivables BR 3K 56,418 44,579
Cash and bank balances R& MIBTER 22 27,567 41,236
104,658 105,731
Current liabilities mEN& R
Trade payables B 5 EMRR 23 6,165 6,175
Accrued liabilities and other EETEER
payables H th & BR 3K 8,718 5,616
Deposits received BUET & 9,733 9,279
24,616 21,070
Net current assets mENEERE 80,042 84,661
Net assets TERE 106,895 119,480

iﬁi%?”‘ﬂiﬁl‘ﬁ’&?
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Consolidated Statement of FEeEMBRAE
Financial Position
As at 30 June 2013 RZE—=FA=1+H

Capital and reserves BEXR#ME

Share capital fi& A< 25 34,760 34,760

Reserves (e 27 70,410 82,811
105,170 117,571

Non-controlling interests B R 1,725 1,909

Total equity HEs 106,895 119,480

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 WR-E—=FH A=+ HEESZeHELE

September 2013 Tl B
Han Xiao Yue Guo Yan Ni
BRE Lig.3
Director Director
EFE o

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
FEMERBRDF
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Statement of Financial Position MERAE

As at 30 June 2013 RZE—=FA=+H

Non-current assets ERENEE
Interests in subsidiaries B A B M RERS 16 13,000 13,000
Available-for-sale investments A EREIEE 17 24,336 26,186
37,336 39,186
Current assets i B E
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UG B B A B3R IR 16 83,352 85,110
Deposits, prepayments and other e AR FIE R H A
receivables JE U BR 7R 21 15,196 15,196
Cash and bank balances e MIBTERF 22 785 1,352
99,333 101,658
Current liabilities mBHAR
Amounts due to subsidiaries JFEA Y B A Rl Fk IR 16 3,926 4111
Accrued liabilities and EETEaE R
other payables H fth & BR X 700 350
4,626 4,461
Net current assets mENEERE 94,707 97,197
Net assets BEERE 132,043 136,383
Capital and reserves BERGEME
Share capital % Z< 25 34,760 34,760
Reserves (ke 27 97,283 101,623
Total equity HiEs 132,043 136,383

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 M-_ZT—=FNA=t+HE=SSH LK

September 2013 ks
Han Xiao Yue Guo Yan Ni
BRE SRR
Director Director
= =

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
REEMERBRA A
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Consolidated Statement of FeEEERnE
Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2013 BHE_T—=F"A=1+HLFE

At 1 July 2011 RZB--%
tA-H 22,070 56,260 8,789 9 28,764 12,079 3304 (101,5%2) 29,743 2,088 31831

Total comprehensive rEE2EFR

loss for the year a5 = = = = = (1,269) = (19,860) (21,129) (179) (21,308)
Issug of shares Sk 9,690 69,227 - - - - - - 78,917 - 78917
Converted convertible ~~ AATRRZEE

notes into shares BRRN 3,000 30,344 - - - - (3,304) - 30,040 - 30,040

A30June2012and R-F--%
at 1July 2012 ~NAZTER
“g-CF
tF-H 34,760 155,831 8,789 29 28,764 10810 - (121,412) 117571 1,909 119,480

Total comprehensive AEE2EER
loss for the year e - - - - - 2,003 - (14404 (12,401) (184)  (12585)

At 30 June 2013 R-B-Z%
~AZTH 34,760 155,831 8,789 29 28,764 12,813 - (135,816) 105,170 1,725 106,895

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of REeEBEeERER
Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2013 BHE_T—=F"A=1+HLFE

Cash flows from operating activities BEEBHRERE
Loss before tax B 75 B ES 18 (14,588) (20,039)
Adjustments for: BT SEELAE:
Depreciation e 616 776
Interest income ) 2 U A (112) (27)
Amortisation of intangible assets E A EHE 38 37
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BE K
equipment REHEE 84 13
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HEBAFMN
&5 18 - 623
Impairment loss recognised in respect of L HL A FE U BR SR AR A
other receivables A EE - 2,530
Impairment loss for available-for-sale AHEREEER
investments WEEE 1,850 =
Finance cost B - 2
Other income H bl A (1,957) (1,240)
Share of loss of an associate G — B E AR &S - 33
Gain on disposal of an associate e — R E A R (34) =

Operating loss before working capital changes RitZEZELEEHH

KEER (14,103) (17,292)
Decrease in inventories FE R 1,275 2,103
Increase in trade receivables B 5 e W B 38 0 (9) (97)
Increase in deposits, prepayments and other 5] & - J8 N X E &
receivables H b U BR 3038 A0 (5,251) (15,590)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables ZESRMERCRD)
o (242) 2,452
Increase/(decrease) in accrued liabilities and ~ FE =T & & K H # jE
other payables BRFRE N, CRid) 3,442 (5,490)
Decrease in deposits received B YET £ R/ - (125)
Cash used in operations KEEHAMRE (14,888) (34,039)
Interest paid =EEESS - (2)
Net cash used in operating activities IR IR SR (14,888) (34,041)

40 VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June 2013

HE-_T—

FRA=THLEFE

Cash flows from investing activities BRETHNRERE
Interest received B U F B 112 27
Investment in an associate R—HBERRNIEE - (3,628)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BEK&EE (26) (5)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and LEWE  BE &R
equipment EEMFTS B 86 =
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FRHEBAREELERN
ReRAFE - 86
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing KEEHEL (2H)
activities RIR & F R 172 (3,520)
Cash flows from financing activities METEBNRERE
Repayment of obligation under finance lease  EEZMEHENE T - (51)
Net proceed from right issue MR EERNTSRIEF5E - 69,580
Net cash generated from financing activities REEEEAMNE S FE - 69,529
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash BR&RBELEEM (FD)
equivalents Vg k1 (14,716) 31,968
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July REtA—BRNRE R
BEEEY 41,236 10,950
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net fE RSB R EFEE 1,047 (1,682)
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June BARA=+THHERER
ReSHED 27,567 41,236
Analysis of balances of cash and cash BeRBeSEMRERF
equivalents o h
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTET 27,567 41,236

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
REEMERBRA A
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on
15 February 2001 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company
withdrew the listing of its shares on The Growth Enterprise
Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 10 February 2003, and on
the same date, by way of introduction, listed its entire issued
share capital on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

The Company's registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-111, Cayman
Islands. The Company's principal place of business is Suites
3434-3436, 34/F Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong during the year.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are manufacturing
and trading of BlOenergy products, healthcare food products,
multi-functional water generators and other healthcare products
in the People's Republic of China (the “PRC”), excluding Hong
Kong and Macau.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of revised
standard and amendments issued by the HKICPA that are
mandatorily effective for accounting periods beginning on 1
July 2012.

HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive
(Amendments) Income

HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets
(Amendments)

HKFRS 1 Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for
(Amendments) First-time Adopters

HKFRS 7 Disclosures-Transfers of Financial Assets
(Amendments)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 increase the disclosure
requirements for transactions involving transfers of financial
assets. These amendments are intended to provide greater
transparency around risk exposures when a financial assets is
transferred but the transferor retains some level of continuing
exposure in the assets. The amendments also require
disclosures where transfers of financial assets are not evenly
distributed throughout the period.

The new and revised HKFRSs have no material effect on the
amounts reported in these consolidated financial statements
and/or disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new or revised
standards, amendments and interpretation that have been
issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

except for HKAS 1 (Amendments)!

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits!

HKAS 27 (2011)

Separate Financial Statements!

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures!
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKAS 32 (Amendments)  Financial Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities?

HKAS 36 (Amendments)  Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets?

HKAS 39 (Amendments)  Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting?

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)  Government Loans!

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)  Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities!

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements!

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements!

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities!

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement!

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and Transition
(Amendments) Disclosures®

HKFRS 10, HKFRS Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements
11 and HKFRS 12 and Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Transition
(Amendments) Guidance!

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Investment Entities?
and HKAS 27 (2011)

(Amendments)
HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface
Mine!
HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the new and revised standards, amendments and interpretation
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FEEHBREHRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 30
June each year. Control is achieved where the Company has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposal of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into

line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment in subsidiaries

Business combinations are accounted for by applying the
purchase method. This involves the revaluation at fair value
of all identifiable assets and liabilities, including contingent
liabilities of the subsidiary, at the acquisition date, regardless of
whether or not they were recorded in the financial statements
of the subsidiary prior to acquisition. On initial recognition,
the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position at their fair values,
which are also used as the bases for subsequent measurement
in accordance with the Group's accounting policies.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

In the Company's statement of financial position, subsidiaries
are carried at cost less impairment loss unless the subsidiary is
held for sale or included in a disposal group. The results of the
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivables at the end of the reporting
period.

Non-controlling interest represents the portion of the profit or
loss and net assets of a subsidiary attributable to equity interest
that are not owned by the Group and are not the Group's
financial liabilities.

Non-controlling interests presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
the equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the owners of
the Company even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
REEMERER R A

1R R0 AL A A AR i

Rt %5 3 = Bl o

BHE_ZT-—=F A=1+HIFE

FESFHBRFRERE »

HOB B 2 TR R

EBAHABBEAR EF P RIER
iﬁiﬁ%%%ﬂ%%%ﬁﬂ%%ﬁ%
kaE BRZMEARNRAAE:

ﬁ&ﬁﬁ?&ﬁbﬁ%%mmuﬁﬁ
P % M B A ] B B A5 R R o R F) 25 B
RE - ZHMBARNEEMABEEA
FESAGEMBIRRAER MREAS
BOEtERR RFETAEERAE
MR o

RS EREREE SEANR S &
BHEEEQRBR AR KEY T
LEE - BRIER D RBEEF BB TAEE
BELRERE SRITSHERERE
o

BRIEMB AR AHEEMITALIIAL
S4B BN AR B BACREKF -
S /B8 2 R) TH 3R B AN R = AR DR B B 1R 5
R-MBARMEEARRRAIRENR
HHIRE B U B AR BB AR

¥R s A 2 4 Y B 8 R RO O R SR BT R e
BEFET WIMANEERERNRE
FriElE - BYFEASEM A BRI D -

R ER S SRS VBRI KRR
HEFR BARQRAEESAREEZDF
275 o AN B E4E A IE I AR 2R PR 4R
AEEBERAFERD M%#%kﬁ¥
EARREBEACENZE N SEESE
B B bt 5B 8 ﬁ#%kﬁ*ﬁﬁ%
AhfE gk o



L AL AL A

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associates.
When the Group's share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate, the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of an associate recognised at the date of
acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS
36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Associates (continued)

Upon disposal of an associate that results in the Group
losing significant influence over that associate, any retained
investment is measured at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition as a
financial asset in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference
between the previous carrying amount of the associate
attributable to the retained interest and its fair value is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate on the same basis as would be
required if that associate had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would be reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when it loses
significant influence over that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with associate are
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of the interest in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised on the transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with the ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established; and
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESRKEE »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis,
taking into account the principal amounts outstanding and the
effective interest rate applicable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment
losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account their estimated residual values,
using the straight line method, at the following rates:
Leasehold improvement 5 years or over
the lease terms,
whichever is shorter
Machinery and equipment 8 to 12 years
Furniture and office equipment 3 to 8 years
Motor vehicle 8 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the item) is included in profit or loss in the year in which the
item is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using weighted average method and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprise
direct materials, where applicable, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
any applicable selling expenses.
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For the year ended 30 June 2013 BHE_ZT—=F"A=1+HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESRKEE »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets and research and ML SERAREE
development costs
Intangible assets BEEE

Intangible assets acquired separately are recognised initially at
cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets are tested
for impairment as described below. Amortisation commences
when the intangible assets are available for use. Patents and
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technical know-how are recognised as intangible assets and FHINIREFEEEE-
amortised on a straight line basis over their useful lives.
Research and development costs fiff & B 2K

Costs associated with research activities are expensed in the
profit or loss as they occur.

Costs that are directly attributable to the development phase
are recognised as intangible assets provided they meet the
following recognition requirements:

(i)  demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective
product for internal use or sale;

(ii)  there is intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

(iii) the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated;

(iv) the intangible asset will generate probable economic
benefits through internal use or sale;

(v) sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can be
reliably measured.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FEFHRBRFEHEE »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets and research and
development costs (continued)

Research and development costs (continued)

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on development
along with an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.
The costs of internally generated product developments are
recognised as intangible assets. They are subject to the same
subsequent measurement method as externally acquired
intangible assets. Development costs recognised as intangible
assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful
lives. All other development costs are expensed as incurred.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimated of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Employee benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for those employees who are eligible to participate in the
Retirement Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Retirement Scheme. The assets of the
Retirement Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the Retirement Scheme except for the Group's employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when
an employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the Retirement
Scheme.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the government of
the PRC, subsidiaries of the Group operating in the PRC
are required to participate in an employee pension scheme
operated by the relevant local government authorities in
the PRC and to make contributions for employees who
are registered as permanent residents in the PRC. Such
contributions are charged to the statement of comprehensive
income as they become payable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FEFHREEE »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(HK$), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when
they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign currency borrowings;

° exchange differences on transactions entered into in
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see the
accounting policies below); and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part
of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of
the monetary items.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency (continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions are used.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets “at fair value through profit or
loss” (FVTPL), “held-to-maturity” investments, “available-
for-sale” (AFS) financial assets and “loans and receivables”.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

FESFHRFEERE »

Financial instruments (continued) MEIR (&
Effective interest method BEBFIE L

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount of initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets designed as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FYTPL when the financial

assets are either held for trading or it is designated as at

FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
it in the near term; or

° On initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-

taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

"U Al B |{IIIE|IJ‘I‘

A I| |

ERNEERFTEEHR TABBERAR
DERBAPENNERANITE-E
BRA R TIZER T AMEF FHRE
HiR) (@ A ) ERERR IR R R S U
A (BB E IR A R A R] 5 iR 80 1 /Y
—JENHCRERRHBE XHHA
R Bl (B 33T o ) B4 2 HER I A0 BR
3 BE A ) K o

BR1EE B A FESIER &5 AR F 38
BB BEEN B TANKRATIZ
BRI REAERER -

B R-FEIER S A & F 5 E R 8
HMBEEE

MBEENFKERSRIEERERTFE
B RS At F KB R D R A
1B 51 BR B 51 A A S48 -

7 & T3 et - RIS A 5 B Bt
S TR

e ZUBEEXZNEHELHREN
miEE

©  RHMBAERVSEREBALE
—GEERTRIM BT AL
9 —FB 15 - B RS iR
= 5

o RITETEYIFEERBREH
TH-

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

REEMERBRA A




(AN AN )

56

—E—=FEER AL i SO0 LA A AR N AMBLLAALN IN

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the “revenue” line item in the
consolidated income statement.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates
that the group has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less any impairment (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment losses on financial assets below).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESRKEE »

ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (“AFS financial
assets”)

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)
financial assets at FVTPL.

AFS financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of
the each reporting period. Changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of available-for-sale investments revaluation reserve.
Where the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the available-for-sale investments revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity investments are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of
the reporting period (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables (including deposits and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its costs is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as deposits and
other receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, as well
as observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

FESFHBRFRERE »

Financial instruments (continued) MBEIR (%)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) BBEERE (8)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods (see the accounting
policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets except for trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment
at the date the impairment is revered does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of available-for-
sale investments revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed
through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESRKEE »

ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL
on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

o the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and
is included in the “other gain and losses” line item in the
consolidated income statement.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including other payables and others)

are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recongise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013 BE_T—=9A=Z1+BLFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FEFHBREE »
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued) MBEIR (%)
Derecognition (continued) U TERR (18)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no
longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and
the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
difference associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, related parties
include a person and entity as defined below:

(i)

(ii)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(a)

(b)

(c)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group;

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any of
the following conditions applies:

(a)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

either entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of a third entity;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)
(i)~ (continued)

(e) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Company or an
entity related to the Company. If the reporting entity
is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the plan;

(f)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i);

(g) a person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Share-based payment transaction

The Company issues equity-settled share-based payments to
eligible employees including directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, and other persons including consultants, advisors,
agents, customers, suppliers etc. to subscribe for shares in the
Company. Equity-settled share-based payments are measured
at fair value at the date of grant. The fair value determined at
the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest and
adjusted for the effort of non market-based vesting conditions.

For share options that are vested immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013 BE_T—=9A=Z1+BLFE
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FEFHREEE »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leasing e

Operating leases KEHE

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards LT E RIEFA AR & B A
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as HHREEARBHNEE - BELEHEE

operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
statement of comprehensive income on a straight line basis
over the period of the lease.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have been
issued. Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of
shares are deducted from share premium (net of any related
income tax benefits) to the extent they are incremental costs
directly attributable to the equity transaction.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also
be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, they will then be recognised as provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
event and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and subject
to an insignificant risk of change in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. For the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows, bank overdrafts and
bank loans, if any, which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of an enterprise’s cash managements are also
included as component of cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits or other distributable
reserves, where appropriate, within the equity section of
the statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company's memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations as discussed below, which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements. The following are the key
assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
management has to exercise judgement in the area of
asset impairment, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has occurred that may affect the asset value
or such event affecting the asset value has not been in
existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management to
determine the level of impairment, including the discount
rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.

Income taxes

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
carried forward to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the unused
tax losses can be utilised, based on all available evidence.
Recognition primarily involves judgement regarding
the future performance of the particular legal entity
or tax group in which the deferred tax asset has been
recognised. A variety of other factors are also evaluated
in considering whether there is convincing evidence that
is probable that some portion or all of the deferred tax
assets will ultimately be realised, such as existence of
taxable temporary differences, tax planning strategies
and the periods in which estimated tax losses can be
utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets and
related financial models and budgets are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and to the extent that there
is insufficient convincing evidence that sufficient taxable
profits will be available within the utilisation periods to
allow utilisation of the carry forward tax losses, the asset
balance will be reduced and charged to the statement of
comprehensive income.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual values, using the
straight line method. The estimated useful lives reflect
the directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the
use of the Group’s property, plant and equipment. The
residual values reflect the directors’ estimated amount
that the Group would currently obtain from disposal of the
asset, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if
the assets were already of the age and in the condition
expected at the end of its useful life.
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(ii)

(iii)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

(iv) Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

(v)

The Group’s provision policy for bad and doubtful debts
is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of accounts and on management’s judgement.
A considerable amount of judgement is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowance may be required.

Impairment test of assets

The management determines whether an asset is
impaired at least on an annual basis or where an
indication of impairment exists. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the asset. Estimating
the value in use requires the management to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the assets
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 Operating Segments with
effect from 1 April 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard
that requires operating segments to be identified on the basis
of internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker for the
purpose of allocating resources to segments and assessing their
performance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal
reports which provides information about components of the
Group. These information are reported to and reviewed by the
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

(A) Segment revenue, results, assets and
liabilities

For the purpose of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s chief
operating decision maker monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segment.
Head office and corporate expenses are not allocated to
individual segments.

Segment assets principally comprise all tangible assets,
intangible assets and current assets directly attributable
to each segment. All liabilities are allocated to unallocated
corporate liabilities.

The four reportable operating segments are listed as
follows:

(i)  BlOenergy products: manufacturing and trading
of bedding products, underclothing and body
protection accessories containing the BlOenergy
compound

(i)  Healthcare food products: trading of healthcare food
products, including polypeptide products

(iii)  Multi-functional water generator: manufacturing and
trading of multi-functional water generator

(iv) Others: trading of other healthcare products and
others

Rt %5 3 = Bl o

BHE_ZT-—=F A=1+HIFE

5. BEREH 4

LED AR AR E S AKE D E R
MABKREE D ZFEHEZHRTER
LERRE UYATBREERREEN
AP EEEIR R HRER -

g

\
)
/

(A) ZBYD R\ -WERAR

REHE D BRI RN E D R E 2 A
BER AEENTRLERKER
ATEEERRATE2®RD MEML
X -BENMAE:

W RASX IR ERAT28D
MELMHERLZFDELEDN
A ZEN BRIGEETENE
HELANHAXORERATE2HD
MR ERNAAFEZTEDE
E @576

DHEETEBRES S HEREN
FMEBREE BREERRDE
E-FEREHPREERDEAF
BfE-

MEET2HEEDFFEINMAT
() RFRFRJEM LEREER

ERFREAVNAR LA M
B AR RRERE M
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(iv) Hft: BEEHMREERNE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. FEBEH =

(A) SR R\ -TERAR

(A) Segment revenue, results, assets and

liabilities (continued)

Business segments

The following tables present revenue, results and certain
assets, liabilities and expenditure information for the
Group’s business segments:

()
#5555
TR 2504 & EEHH Btz

$ERETAE ABRAXE
*

Revenue:

Sales to external customers
Segment result

Unallocated other income

Unallocated expenses

Loss from operating activities

Finance costs

Loss before income tax
expense

Income tax expense

Loss for the year

REEMERBRD

NN mluﬁ“{ 1.4]1.:]\&

Healthcare food
products

FRREER

BlOenergy products
XERERZRT

Multi-functional water
generators

SRS

Others
e

Consolidated

HE

Ba:
HHNEPHE 12,979 9,829 1,448 2,722 3,268 4,658 2,128 3275 19,828 20484
AWER 2,647 463 (89) (838) (111) (200) 161 569 2,608 (6)
Hin KA BRKA 3,334 3739
FRAEAX (20,530)  (22,124)
mEER (14,588)  (18,391)
B - (1649
RAEHESAER

(14,588)  (20,039)
P REx - -
rEEER (14,588)  (20,039)

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

o | |
. \ik [ ;) TR ' . ii, W il |
wﬂmw A AN i oM UGN v mm}«w_ oM ARG A i M UG



0ol A Aol e A A AN bl o ;. At Report 2013 Al

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(A)

(B)

AR LN LA ER

Segment revenue, results, assets and
liabilities (continued)

Healthcare food
BlOenergy products products
RERERR RERA

Rt %5 30 RO &E

BHE_ZT-—=F A=1+HIFE

5. EEHE )
(A) "BEE - XF FERAR

(&)

Multi-functional water
generators

SRR

Others
i

Consolidated

Ra

Segment assets SHRE 66,471 46,935 7,418 12,998
Unallocated assets AOREE
Total assets AESE
Segment liabilities SMAE 14,729 9,026 1,644 2,500
Unallocated liabilities APRAE
Total liabilities aELE
Other segment information X ft1 4 55 3
Depreciation e 57 216
Unallocated amount of AARTESE
depreciation
Amortisation of intangible ~ EEE#H
assets 38 37
Capital expenditure BARRER

Unallocated amounts of capital R D B & RB X £ 5
expenditure

Geographical segments

A geographical analysis of the Group’s revenue from
external customers, certain asset and expenditure
information is not presented as the Group’s revenue and
assets in geographical segments other than Mainland
China are less than 10% of the aggregate amount of all
segments.

YR AL

18,561 24,717 10,896 15642 103,346 100,292
28,165 40,258

131,511 140,550

5,828 6,535 2,415 3,009 24,616 21,070
24,616 21,070

57 216

559 560

616 776

38 37

- 5

- 5

(B) M=% HB

MR AEERME D (P EAE
BIMNEDHKRBAREESREH
2 EEFRIEH10% - B & 2 5
AEEZREDHREHINE
Frls ETEERRAXERD
D

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 5 3R MY 5

For the year ended 30 June 2013 BHE_ZT—=F"A=1+HILFE
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. ¥EBEHE )
(C) Information about major customers (C) EEEFREH
The Group has a very wide customer base, and no single REBEBIETRZHNESER
customer contributed more than 10% of the Group's RBEZZE—=FR_FT—Z-FX
revenue for each of the years ended 30 June 2013 and A=TRHILFESF WEE-—F
2012. FEAEBKEZERII0%MA Eo
6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 6. Ik REMITA
(A) Revenue (A) Ix&2
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents Wes MENAAREBMNE X 15
the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances BEHNBRERERE SN (WERA)
for returns and trade discounts where applicable. All EHHEEEREEFE-TEEE
significant intra-group transactions have been eliminated NEHNEAR HERGA KRB KK
on consolidation. 8 °
Turnover made in Mainland China is subject to value B KBEEVS B & AR %
added tax (“VAT") at a rate of 17% (“output VAT”). Such TREBRIZER ([BER]) ([
output VAT is payable after offsetting VAT paid by the TEIRER ] ) - R FHIEIRER AR
Company on purchases (“input VAT”). AN A IEE RS (TR ETR
([ETEIRER ) BN -
(B) Other Income (B) Hftalx A
Group
xEKE

Interest income FE M A 112 27

Reversal of impairment loss on BEFERERE
inventories 1,276 -
Others HAh 1,946 3,712
3,334 3,739

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
REEMERBRD
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

7. LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 7. BEEGR

REBROHBRTISE:

Loss from operating activities is arrived at after charging:

Group
FEE

Auditor’s remuneration 1% 2 A0 B
Audit services EZ R 700 700
Non-audit services e 1% AR 75 150 541
Cost of inventories sold EHTFERA 7,994 13,348
Staff costs B TR A

Wages and salaries TEKFH® 9,398 9,137

Pension scheme contributions BIREFTEI R 1,009 1,037

10,407 10,174

Depreciation e 616 776
Amortisation of intangible assets* B ERE 38 37
Operating lease charges in respect of TH REFHRBLEHEE

land and buildings - 335! 2,138 2,547
Impairment loss recognised in respect of £ fth & U 3R LR HY

other receivables* R EEE - 2,530
Impairment loss recognised in respect of Ft A &% & 18 B fERH

available-for-sale investments* TEE R 1,850 =
Loss on disposal of property, plantand  HEWE BE LR ED

equipment* E5i8* 84 13

& included in other operating expenses * HIAEMEEERA

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 5 3R MY 5

For the year ended 30 June 2013 BHE_ZT—=F"A=1+HILFE
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MEBxH
Group
x5E

Interest on finance leases MERENFE = 1

Interest on convertible notes AR R EF B - 1,647
- 1,648

4|
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. S

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the Group R AN & B A F AT & B I 48 B A B AR

had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the BaM(Z2E—=—F 1 8) QI EED

year (2012: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have B 7 15 0 18 15 o H fth b 75 B FE R B a5

been calculated at the applicable rates of tax prevailing in the FIRI R IR Th IR AN & B 48 & 2 75 1) R) VA1

jurisdiction in which the Group operates, based on existing EERAEAMEBEFAFBEZAE

legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof BEOREEY REREFmMAE-

during the year.

Group
x&EH

Current — Mainland China B EA — A B K e
Charge for the year REEFEZH - =

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

m Wmﬂfm&mﬂm M\MMUHM W\l HMM b N mumlnl;wm m



AN At A, e A 0l o . At Report 2013 imi o

‘\H‘Nl "..r::f!.u'u N

Notes to the Financial Statements B 53R XM GE

For the year ended 30 June 2013 BHE_ZT—=F"A=1+HILFE
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 9. FrEMMAZ o
Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting BEBAREAENEHERAI R
loss at applicable tax rates is as follows: BHEROT
Group
xEME

Loss before income tax M FT1S B A S 18 (14,588) (20,039)

Tax at the applicable tax rate (Note a) BEARETENTIE

(HMtsFa) (3,022) (4,342)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses DGR Aok A 2,674 3,753
Tax effect of non-taxable income BRRB AT 52 2 (545) =
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIER IS BB B

wa 893 589
Income tax expense e - =
Notes: B 5 -
The applicable rates are the rates prevailing in the jurisdictions in BRABERAARREMNE R AL EEBH
which the Company and its subsidiaries operate. AVERERE R AR X o

10. LOSS ATTRIBUTABE TO OWNERS OF 10. AR BB ABLESIR
THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company 1440887 (ZZT— =4 : 581,986
of HK$14.4 million (2012: loss of HK$19.86 million), a loss of BEATL)NARREE ARGGABES
HK$4.34 million (2012: loss of HK$5.90 million) has been dealt AR ARTBEHRERARERNEER
with in the financial statements of the Company. 434EHB T (=T — ZF : 5185908 &
TT) e
11. DIVIDENDS 11. K2
No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during RZEVBRERE2INNSFE  RNAF
the years presented in these financial statements. I RS S E IR E AR B -

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

12.

13.

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on loss
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 30
June 2013 of HK$14.4 million (2012: HK$19.86 million) and
the weighted average of 1,390,407,948 (2012: the weighted
average of 1,251,384,321) ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

The diluted loss per share for the years ended 30 June 2013
and 2012 has not been disclosed as there were no potential
dilutive shares in issue during the years.

DIRECTORS' AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION

(A) Directors’ emoluments
The directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the

Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance is as follows:

RA %5 30 R B &E

BE-T-SFAASTHLTE

12.

13.

FLFIRAE AELERBIR

BREABEENIREBEE_ZT—=FX
A=1tBLEFEAREREAARIEER
144088 Tt (ZE—Z4:1,9868 %
TO) RFERD BT E BB INE TSR
1,390,407,948% (=& — —4F : In#E ¥
5%71,251,384,321 ) 51 & »

HREE T =Fr_ZF——F,XA
“tHLFERMESRTBEHER
B BT EREZSEFTENEREEE

Be

EERLEEETHESMN
o &

A) EFE£

R EWRAURES R REHE
161G EMNESIE T

Group
x&EH

Fees e
Other emoluments: H At B :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in ~ ¥& 28 RE W=

kind

Pension scheme contributions BIREET B

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
REEMERBRD
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 5 3R MY 5

For the year ended 30 June 2013 BHE_ZT—=F"A=1+HILFE
13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST 1. EFRABERFERD
PAID EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION L KA
(continued)
(A) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (A) EFEBL (&)
The emoluments of each director, on a named basis, for RBE_Z—=FR_FT—-FX
the years ended 30 June 2013 and 2012 are set out A=TRHLEE BuEFHMHE
below: REMAHMNT
Year ended 30 June 2013 B#FE—_E—=-FXA=1THILFE

Han Qing Yun BEE — _ _ _
Han Xiao Yue g - _ — _
Guo Yan Ni P = - _ _
Long Ming Fei BE B R = - _ _
Xu Nian Chun REE = - _ _
Li Xin Zhong o] - _ _ _
Zhang Wen 659 = - _ _
Zhu Jing Hua KERE - - _ _
Total 2013 —E—=F45%5 - = - _

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
FEMERBRDF
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 5 3R MY 5

For the year ended 30 June 2013 HE-_Z—=F"A=1THLEFE
13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST 1. EFRIGESHEAN
PAID EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION &
(continued)
(A) Directors’ emoluments (continued) A) EEME (&)
Year ended 30 June 2012 HE_T - A=1THILFE

Han Qing Yun BEE - - - -

Han Xiao Yue SRR = = - -

Guo Yan Ni GiE-33 - - - -

Long Ming Fei BERATR = - - -

Xu Nian Chun RatE - - - -

Li Xin Zhong s - - - -

Zhang Wen R 3 - - - -

Zhu Jing Hua REHEE - - - -

Total 2012 =B==E45 - - - -

There were no fees and other emoluments payable to the FAVWERNBLIENTESZNEE R
independent non-executive directors during the year B (ZFE—Z=F &) -

(2012: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived REBEEZZT—=FK=F—Z-FA8
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the years =THLEFE UEESEHEXREN
ended 30 June 2013 and 2012. ZEMM e L8 -

During the year, no director (2012: Nil) has been granted FRNBEEE (T ——F:8)AK
with share options in respect of their services to the SHAEENRBMEXBRE -G
Group and further details of which were set out in note 26 BRENE — T HBEN M HRE T
to the financial statements. 26 °

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 5 3R MY 5

For the year ended 30 June 2013 BHE_ZT—=F"A=1+HILFE
13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST B.EERIBEEHFEAN
PAID EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION &
(continued)
(B) Five highest paid individuals B) AEEEHAL
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during FAAEEBREZRFALILET
the year have not include director (2012: Nil), details BREEE(ZT——F:8\&) FH=E
of whose emoluments have been disclosed in note (a) RS B E R LX) #E -
above. The emoluments paid to the remaining five (2012: FATNFTFEBAR(ZE—=
five) non-directors, highest paid individuals for the year FRR)IFES ZaH ATHB
are as follows: ST
Group
xEE

Salaries, allowances and benefits in % & 286 & B Y25

kind 2,167 1,504

Pension scheme contributions BIRS FTEIH R 75 48
2,242 1,552

The number of the remaining highest paid individuals HEHMENTUTHENRSHFALTH
whose emoluments fell within the following band is as AELT
follows:
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000/ 7T 5 5
During the years ended 30 June 2013 and 2012, no REEZZT—=FK=_F—Z—FA
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors or “THLEFE AEETEMESNF
any of the five highest paid employees of the Group as an MAEBREEsHEEXNME 1
inducement to join the Group or upon joining the Group AINAZ & B =0 A A& B 14 /) 22 E) =X
or as compensation for loss of office. ERBERF(E o

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
FEMERBRDF
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 5 3R MY 5

For the year ended 30 June 2013 BHE_ZT—=F"A=1+HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14.9% -BERR{E

Group xEE

At cost REA
At 1 July 2011 R_E——F
+HA—H 16,927 1,718 15,504 4,213 38.362
Addition NE - - 5 - 5
Disposal HE - - (315) - (315)
As at 30 June 2012 and RZZE—=FA
1 July 2012 =tHR
—E——F
+A—H 16,927 1,718 15,194 4,213 38,052
Addition B - - 26 - 26
Disposal HE - (1,627) (3,304) (529) (5,460)
Exchange realignment B R A% 630 64 549 138 1,381
At 30 June 2013 RZE-ZF
~NB=1H 17,557 155 12,465 3,822 33,999
Accumulated depreciation it e
At 1 July 2011 R_E——F
+H—H 16,412 1,653 13,242 3,872 35,179
Charges for the year FRIEG 29 26 175 279 776
Reversal due to disposal HERRE - - (273) - (273)
As at 30 June 2012 and RZE—ZF
1 July 2012 AB=TBR
—E——F
+HA—H 16,708 1,679 13,144 4,151 35,682
Reversal of over-provision BETES LBE
depreciation charges B - - (275) (406) (681)
Charge for the year FRIHK 138 23 300 155 616
Reversal due to disposal & R R e - (1,630) (3,131) (529) (5,290)
Exchange realignment R 637 67 497 183 1,384
At 30 June 2013 A_2—-=f
~NB=1H 17,483 139 10,535 3,554 31,711
Net carrying amount REFE
As at 30 June 2013 R-B-=%
~B=+H 74 16 1,930 268 2,288
As at 30 June 2012 RZE——F
~NA=1H 219 39 2,050 62 2,370

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
REEMERBRD
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 5 3R MY 5

For the year ended 30 June 2013 BHE_ZT—=F"A=1+HILFE
15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. |\ 8 E
Group xEE

At cost K AR
At 1 July 2011, 30 June 2012 R-_ZE——F
and 1 July 2012 +tH—H-
—E—_F
NA=ZTBR
—E——%F
tH—H 6,856 7,510 14,366
Exchange realignment bE 5 5 & 257 282 539
At 30 June 2013 BR-E—=%F
~NB=+H 7,113 7,792 14,905
Accumulated amortisation RET#H
At 1 July 2011 R-_ZE——F
t+tH—H 6,561 7,510 14,071
Charges for the year F N 37 = 37
As at 30 June 2012 and R-ZZE——F
1 July 2012 NA=TEBER
T4
tHA—H 6,598 7,510 14,108
Charge for the year F AR 38 = 38
Exchange realignment bE 5 3R & 248 282 530
At 30 June 2013 R-E—Z=%
~B=1+H 6,884 7,792 14,676
Net carrying amount R FER
As at 30 June 2013 R-E—=%
NB=+H 229 - 229
As at 30 June 2012 RNZTE——%F
~NA=1+H 258 - 258

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
FEMERBRDF
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

RA %5 30 R B &E

BE-T-SFAASTHLTE

16. R B L FME R

Company
FAT

Unlisted investment, at cost JEEMIRE EKAE 39,952 39,952
Less: Provision for impairment TR E R (26,952) (26,952)

13,000 13,000
Due from subsidiaries JE W B /B 2 R SRIE 83,352 85,110
Due to subsidiaries FE{S B B A R FIAE (3,926) (4,111)

As at 30 June 2013, the balances with subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Accordingly, the amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are
classified as current assets/liabilities.

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

RZZE—=FXA=+tH ENBARF
AR REIER  RRNREREBEE -

it - i (R B R B RES R
RRBEE/RBE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 5 3R MY 5

For the year ended 30 June 2013 BHE_ZT—=F"A=1+HILFE

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES coninuies) 16. RMIBAFIHMER o)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2013 are RZE—=FXA=Z+H TEHNBEAR
as follows: AT -

Vitop Bioenergy Limited British Virgin 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
Islands (“BVI") ~ US$1

REEMIRBERAA EBERZEE 1IREELIETH REER
(RBER LR
#5l)
Vitop Bioenergy PRC Registered capital of - 100% Manufacturing and trading of
(China) Ltd* HK$95,000,000 BlOenergy® products, and
(“Vitop China”) trading of multi-functional water

generators, healthcare food
products and other healthcare

products
REEY (FE)ERAR*  HE #E A% 295,000,000/ 7T EERBERFROZIIER HE
([REHE]) LI sk RERAREM
ERER
Vitop Healthcare Product Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of - 100% Trading of BlOenergy® product
Limited HK$1 each
RERRERARAA BA 2R B REELE TH HERFRRIEm
R
BREREEZZERREBH PRC Registered capital of = 80% Manufacturing and trading
BREEAE RMB5,840,000 of multi-functional water
generators
ERREZZRRERE i TR A R EEREES R EKE
BREARA 5,840,0007T
e Registered as wholly-foreign owned enterprise (“WFOE”) under * REFBZEFMAIEBEE RS-
the PRC law.

o REREEREMATNAELE

*x Registered as Sino-foreign joint venture under the PRC law.

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
FEMERBRDF
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 53R XM GE

For the year ended 30 June 2013 BHE_ZT—=F"A=1+HILFE

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continesy  16. RSB A FMER (&)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which EFRFIWNARREZRABETELELRF
have, in the opinion of the Company’s directors, principally EEE iiﬂﬁ$’§l§?&ﬁ{5§£*ﬁ
affected the results of the year or formed a substantial portion MR RRINB AR - ARFIESRE

of the assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other WREEMHEARFHENSE ?5(1.
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Company’s directors, BITE B @R IUK °

results in particulars of excessive length.

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 17.ffHHE&E&EIEH
Group Company
*EE ¥ /N

Equity securities AR A 7B
— Unlisted securities —JEETES 31,036 34,369 31,036 31,036
Less: Accumulated B RETE R

impairment loss BB EE

recognised (6,700) (5,934) (6,700) (4,850)
Exchange realignment fE 3 & - 161 - =

24,336 28,596 24,336 26,186

Available-for-sale financial assets of unlisted securities at the RMERR FLMBILATLENBHE
end of the reporting period represent investments in companies EEREFRBIAARAIRE M
which were established in the PRC. They are measured at cost REGEMAAFEHEREAN KNAF
less impairment at the end of each reporting period because EERRBEEUEFE=HEQTE UL
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant & RS BRM KA BRBER = °

that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their
fair values cannot be measured reliably.

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

Unlisted shares, at cost JE LT  RAKARE - 542
Share of post-acquisition results and FERNEEEEEER

reserves, net of dividends received R R E WA B - (33)

- 509

Amounts due from an associate JE Uy — el Bt R m) 508 - 3,086

Total = - 3,595

el —HBE AR RARERER 2L

The amounts due from an associate are unsecured, interest

free and are repayable on demand.

On 17 January 2012, the Group completed the acquisition of
45% equity interest in FII T LR 25 BE T AR AR, for
a cash consideration of HK$542,000.

On 4 July 2012, the Group acquired the remaining 55%
equity interest in RINTHEREH L E ERIWMAER AR, for a
consideration of approximately HK$687,500.

On 16 April 2013, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party in relation to the
disposal of the entire registered and paid-up capital of &I
LafE it 405 ERITA R A A, The disposal resulted in a gain on
disposal amounted to approximately HK$33,750.

1T .'I | IN J |l rNIH ‘HMN k”'-’l INI ;" { | ; i -"']

il

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

DR g o It o UGN [

&E(\\ESJ?H%LEJ&"

R-ZB——F—A+tH AEETK
AR & R E542,00078 7T U BB R I T 444
A2 (5 BRIM B R 2 B H)45% A HE -

R-ZZE-——FLtAWA AEBEUKE
#)687,5008 TR RIITH 2 LE R
BB R A AR N55% M HE

RZZE—=FWMA+8 AKEHRH
BRI MRt LEERMERARZ
HaMkEeBERE— BB E=7F]
VEEWZ EEHEHEEALERED
33,750 7T

REEMERBRA A
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 5 3R MY 5

For the year ended 30 June 2013 BHE_ZT—=F"A=1+HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continied)  18. R —HE A TRIE R

(#&)

Particulars of the associate is as follows: EABERARIMERIT

Total assets BEBE - 7,518
Total liabilities BEEHE - (6,494)
Net assets BEFE - 1,024
Group’s share of net assets of AEBEESE—FEEEE QA

an associate EEFE - 509
Turnover S - 1,029
Loss for the year AEEEE - (73)
Group’s share of results of RE B S — M E QA

an associate for the year NEFEE - (33)

19. INVENTORIES 1.8
Group

Raw materials R 1%} 4,840 4,974
Work in progress EEH 3,906 5,151
Finished goods BUAK T 13,033 13,474

21,779 23,599

Less: Provision for obsolete and slow- L BRE N SH B K R B

moving finished goods (3,217) (4,807)
Foreign exchange translation SN IR 696 (231)
19,258 18,561

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 5 3R MY 5

For the year ended 30 June 2013 BHE_ZT—=F"A=1+HILFE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. 8 5B R
Group
x5E

Trade receivables H 5 EHBERR 10,890 10,487
Less: Provision for impairment TR E R (9,475) (9,132)
1,415 1,355

The credit terms that the Group offers to customers are AEE-RAREPIRMHNHEBIOR(E
generally not more than 90 days. BH
An aged analysis of trade receivables is as follows: B RYBRR MR DT T

Group

F- 3401

0 — 30 days 0z230H 38 78
31 - 60 days 31z260H 35 45
61 — 180 days 612180H 85 109
Over 180 days #180H 1,257 1,123

1,415 1,355
Included in the balances are trade receivables with an ERPBEERSRE BB a B m AL E
aggregate carrying amount of HK$1.34 million (2012: HK$1.23 AR ERERENRAAEI3M
million) which are past due at the reporting date for which the EBTL(ZE—ZF:12388TL)BS
Group has not provided impairment loss as there has been no JEWER K - A BRI IRBEBIBE G
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still EHRNEEEXTEERNEH BHH
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any SBEMEA AR 28D - AEE I E
collateral over these balances. No interest is charged on the MZSEERFETMNEFR -EFEW
trade receivables. BRI D ET B o

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
FEMERBRDF
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 5 3R MY 5

For the year ended 30 June 2013 BHE_ZT—=F"A=1+HILFE
20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. BZEUWERR o
Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not BB R ERE SR8 R
impaired: BT
Group
=&EH

61 — 180 days 61%180H 85 109
Over 180 days #180H 1,257 1,123
1,342 1,232
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REEGEH
Group
x5EE

Balance at beginning of the year F R 9,132 9,132
Foreign exchange translation SNEBE 343 =
Balance at the end of the year FIREE 9,475 9,132

MWMMN Wmﬂfﬁm&m Mhm.l Wl HMNN bl HML\MN MUMM.-UMM H‘h
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

21. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND 21.

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Deposits for rental and & kAR RBEEE

Rt %5 30 RO &E

BHE_ZT-—=F A=1+HIFE

Bl &« AfT R IR B H il FE
I B 7%

utilities 487 423 196 196
Deposits for the EEUIBMME AR
proposed acquisition &
of a subsidiary 1 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Prepayments for BETENHKIA
purchases 3,670 4,078 - -
Dividend receivable  FEULH% B 1,500 1,500 - -
Prepayments for VEIEIE B TR 3B
potential projects 11,125 10,723 - -
Other receivables E 4th e U BR =X 2 29,949 17,975 = =
61,731 49,699 15,196 15,196
Less: Provision for BB R
impairment (5,313) (5,120) - =
56,418 44 579 15,196 15,196

Note 1:

PEEEL -

‘]HLl ‘ M 'I; .h( J.'JI i J : | II.II I‘I .'. A‘ .I..‘I'I J ||I 11 I'.I.'_'I.N. Iil ‘m‘w k‘ll!ln {

On 2 August 2011, the Company entered into an agreement
for the acquisition of 90% shareholding in a company, Express
Time Enterprises Limited, from an independent third party at the
consideration of HK$108.50 million. Details of the agreement are set
out in the Company’s announcements dated 12 August 2011 and 2
April 2012.

Pursuant to the agreement, the Company would have the right to
demand full refund of the deposit if the Acquisition is eventually
unsuccessful.

Note 2:

Included in the Group’s other receivables an amount of HK$10 million
being a receivable from a former business partner. In the opinion of
the directors and pursuant to the Group’s legal advisor, the Group’s
provision of impairment of HK$2.59 million (2012: HK$2.59 million) is
sufficient and no further impairment is required.

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

[N ' DAL (i o) It o\ A mlﬁl'

R-B——FENB B KNATLRE
AR EL.085E B m — BB HE = 1 kg
Express Time Enterprises Limited#790% /%
E-ARHBENFBIENARABHER=T
——FENA+-_BAR-ZE——FEOA-HHN

Ao

RIBA B R R IR REREK I E
T RAARAERERBERERH2 -

W2 :

FE AR SR B H A fE UL R SRR /91,0008 78 7T T
B — 2R EBRHNER - EERRRR
BASEREZER  AEEEH2598ET
(ZZ——F: 2598 B L) REREERR
NBAEE—TRE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 5 3R MY 5

For the year ended 30 June 2013 BHE_ZT—=F"A=1+HILFE
22. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 2.BReRBITERF

Cash at banks and in hand BITHReRFHERAS 27,567 41,236 785 1,352
As at the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank REEBR AEBUARETENE
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) & MIRTTHEFE2 8BS T (ZE—=
amounted to HK$26.88 million (2012:HK$34.67 million). The F:34678%ETT)  c ARETSERILR
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However, BE M E MR IR A BN NE B IR K5I
under the PRC Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and NiEE  EERNESERT NEEE
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign HEEBEREEITINEEBRRITHEA
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange REHBBHEME -

RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

23. TRADE PAYABLES 23. B HEFMIRR
The credit terms of trade payables varies according to the B 5 e IR A (= B HA A FE 11 [F) 44 e
terms agreed with different suppliers. The ageing analysis of BHENBHRMTEE - AEEBZEZEN
the Group’s trade payables as at the end of the reporting period RN mEHARNERRTOT
is as follows:
Group
XEME

0 - 30 days 0%&30H 248 342
31 - 60 days 31&60H 351 1,281
61 — 180 days 61%&180H 971 395
Over 180 days #1180H 4,595 4,157

6,165 6,175

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 5 3R MY 5

For the year ended 30 June 2013 BHE_ZT—=F"A=1+HILFE

24. DEFFERED TAXATION 24 ;R ER IR

At 1 July ®ntA—AH - (654)
Recognised directly in equity in respect of gt A] #2 I% Z 4% B 12 A k2
convertible notes TR - -

Converted convertible notes into share 0] # AR Z 1 A K () - 654
At 30 June RANA=+H - =
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax RMERR XEBEEE KRB B HRBES
losses of HK$64.19 million (2012: HK$63.28 million) available 16,4198 BT (ZE—_F:6,3288 %
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies gL) A RERBEELEZEBEN QRN
which incurred the losses. Deferred tax assets have not been R PR FE ER T ) o R RS M VA TEDRI SR 2R g%
recognised in respect of these losses due to the unpredictability At WERZEEEERECHIE
of future profit streams. BEE o

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25, B &

Authorised: VETE
20,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 20,000,000,000% & %
HK$0.025 each H1E0.025/% JT A L3 A% 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRHRE:
1,390,407,948 (2012:1,390,407,948) 1,390,407,948% (==&
ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each — —%:1,390,407,948
%) &R E(E0.0257% T
EOREEENS 34,760 34,760

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
FEMERBRDF
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 25. ] &E )
A summary of movements in the authorised and issued share KRR ETEREBRITRAEZHHE 0
capital of the Company is as follows: ™

At 1 July 2011 R-_E——F+HA—H 20,000,000,000 882,785,961 22,070
Right issue of shares (note(a)) R (KisE(a)) = 294,261,987 7,356
Issue of consideration shares BITRERD

(note(b)) (KI=E(Db)) - 93,360,000 2,334
Converted convertible notes into SR BB ERE SRS

shares (note (c)) (Hi3E(e)) - 120,000,000 3,000
At 30 June 2012, 1 July 2012 and RZZE——F~A=+H"

30 June 2013 —E——FtA-HkK

—ZET—=FA=1+H 20,000,000,000 1,390,407,948 34,760

Note (a) On 18 July 2011, the Company completed a rights
issue of 294,261,987 rights shares on the basis of one rights
share for every three shares held were issued pursuant to the
rights issue. Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
circular and announcement dated 24 June 2011 and 15 July
2011.

Note (b) On 19 December 2011, the Company completed
the acquisition of 9.09% shareholding in Global Trade Center
Holdings Co. Limited. Details of the above are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 31 May 2011.

Note (c) On 19 December 2011 and 31 March 2012,
30,130,000 and 89,870,000 convertible notes were converted
into ordinary shares of the Company.

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
REEMERBRD

7 VN k[ ) A T IR he
NuN KR A m.MWMw A AN i oM UGN v mm}«w_ oM ARG A i M UG

@R —_ZE——FtA+N\B K
RATEREE  REHEZEHFE=ZR
P 47 R] % BC — R RS £ By B FE 1T
294,261,987 B i e B fp o L it IR
HBHERARARBMA T ——F XA
“HHAMEREARA T —F+
ATHEBH RS-

MEOGR —_ZE——F+_A+hA8"
KA A ST U EEGlobal Trade Center
Holdings Co. Limited 9.09%A&#& - |t
EENAFBEN ARG ERHE T ——
FRA=T—HBHNAE-

WeECOR=—TE——F+=_A+NLAR=
= —_F=H=+—H" 30,130,000
1289,870,00017 7] #2 f% Z= 4% B 5 Bl 2 2
BARRNE LB
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 26. & B € 5T 2

In connection with the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the Company conditionally
adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant to an
ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company
on 23 January 2003. The Scheme became effective on 10
February 2003 upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange by way of introduction and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Scheme remains
in force for ten years from that date.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards
to participants for their contribution to the Group or any entity
in which the Group has an equity interest (the “Invested
Entity”) and/or to enable the Group or an Invested Entity to
recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group or an Invested Entity.

The participants of the Scheme include: (a) any employee
(whether full time or part time employee, including any
executive director but not any non-executive director) of
the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;
(b) any non-executive director (including any independent
nonexecutive director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity; (c) any supplier of goods or services
to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (d)
any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity; (e) any
person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group or any Invested Entity; and
(f) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by independent
non-executive directors of the Company. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on the
closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant)
in excess of HK$5,000,000, in any twelve-month period up
to the date of grant, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

AARBRM R RAAER LT - ARE
RE-BHAARAKRRR-FT=F—
AZT=ZB@BEMEBERER BHRM
Ry —RBEERT 8 (T5T81)) -5 8B
BAR AR AN AT R R AT ER
TR -_ZFZE=F_A+REER
B8 (BREEHILBRTIN HE R E
ATFEFRA—BEBR-

A EERYAKRERAEE T ABRA
REMTAER ((REEE]) AMEM
M2 EERHEBHIEE  RRER
SERREERARNBERBRESE
ZRE URRIIEEATMAAEH

FIEER-

AEM2EERE: (AR HEM
MEBARKEMNREEBNEMAESR
(THERAFRBES BREFANTE
= EFBREMFEATES) : (DAR
A HEMMBARREMREERD
EAERTESR (BREMBIIFRTT
BF) AKEEMAANKE QA ST
BREERNETAERmKRBGHER (d)
AEESETARETBNEAES: (e)
FAAKESEMREBERREHRII H
LY HMRMENEMALTRER:
EOARBEFAKERAHEFMKREER
BOERMBR AAKEEAKXE AT
HERITRETBAETEAESFHIMA
FEA-

RAARREE THRERKTIERRK
WEEMBEARTHOERERREARR
BIBMIFMITES SRALE - HIN KA
ZERHEE B M2 B BARAR T A
RAETERRIBIUIFATEETIRE
T8 AN EFERE nEBEaLXR
A PMEAI B B A B 1T 170.1% - BER
BARARMDREHE ANEHEE
FfT 15 42 {88 %815,000,0007% 7T + Bl 7B 7 AR
RAREG LERRELILE-

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 26. E&E%‘I’E“ (&)

The total number of shares of the Company in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme must not exceed
88,278,596 shares, being 10% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue on the date when the 10% Scheme limit
has been refreshed. The 10% Scheme limit was refreshed at
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 30
October 2009.

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted
to each participant (including exercised and outstanding
options) in any twelve-month period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of grant (the “Individual
Limit”). Any further grant of options in excess of the Individual
Limit must be subject to shareholders’ approval in general
meeting with such participant and his or her associates
abstaining from voting.

An option may be exercised at any time during a period as
the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) may
determine which shall not be more than ten years from the date
of grant of the option.

Save as determined by the Board, there is no minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.

The acceptance of an offer of the grant of an option must be
made within 28 days from the date upon which such offer is
made with a non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 from the
grantee to the Company by way of consideration for the grant
thereof.

The subscription price of a share of the Company in respect
of any option shall be such price as the Board in its absolute
discretion shall determine, save that such price will not be
lower than the highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant of the option, which must be a trading day; (b)
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and (c)
the nominal value of the share.

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
REEMERER R A

RBEASAIREOBRED T A
BITHNARABRNEE TFEB
88,278,596% - BN X 10% =T 81 BR 58 & %1
ERARBCHITRMNDAENI0%
10%:T2IRBMERARA —TTNF+
A=+tHETHRRENAG LEH-

REERLE B IEM12(8 A HE AT
BEThEETE2EENERE (1
BEITE K EARITENBEIRE) EITEIER
BERTREGTRITNARBRMO B
TEBAREEBARFEETRMDAE
2m1% ([MEALR]) - LE—FRH
HBEEA LR BEE HAERRAE
BRAREEHE EEHSEEREY
BAVERRRERE-

WRATRARNESR ((HEE )T
B3R T2 B0 HBRI POBERS T LAFT 62 - HERE AR
7T (8 30T 19 1B R 1 AR
st

REFEeXBRTIN BEREER T1T
52 A1 36 & (T {a] R A2 15 B R ©

BETrERENEZZLARZERRL A
HE A28 R RER M AR ABRB AR
A3 41.008 TR N ALRE I - 1EAEK
TERBRENNKE-

EAAT BB B A8 S B9 R 2 B B £ 0 78R
BEHUREEEERDIBETE  ETFER
UTRENRSE: QREHBRES
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FIE AR T (B (D) BB AR
HEIRT A AR 5 B R & B RERM
Sl B An FH W E kK EE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 26. RERX TR (=)

Subject to earlier termination of the Company by resolution in
general meeting, the Scheme shall be valid and effective till 9
February 2013. After the expiry of such valid period, no further
options will be offered but in all other respects the provisions of
the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was
estimated as at the date of grant, using the Binominal option
price model, taking into accounts the terms and conditions
upon which the share options were granted. The expected
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is
indicative of future trends, which may also not necessary be the
actual outcome. No other feature of the share options granted
was incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

The Company did not have any outstanding share options at 30
June 2012 and 30 June 2013. No share options were granted
during the year ended 30 June 2013.

BEE-T-=F_ANBRIL &8
—HAREARRAIERRAS LR
2RBRIEFRILFE -FHEINA B
B TR 2R EREAmBR
o MERT IR IR PR B A T E A% —
BEABTRM

RN B T A A WER B S AR
RRELREMER -

AARERERLENEREIGEET B
B PARRE S e BB A i A T E DR
BHEBESRA - IAABREEERLE
il 5T o T8 B 0% 08 R R R SRR 1R R #E R
HERBENER ETRBRERER -
EEQFER YEFREREBR
RER EL A o

RZE——FRNAZTHE-_ZT—Z=F
NAZT A AQR W ET M EKRITE
BRE-REE-_T—=FA=1+H
IHEERALERHERE-
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27. RESERVES
Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 39 of the
financial statements.

The share premium account of the Group mainly includes: (i)
shares issued at a premium; and (ii) the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the reorganisation scheme (the “Group
Reorganisation”) in preparation for the public listing of the
Company’s shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange therefore.

The convertible notes reserve represents the value of the
unexercised equity component of convertible notes issued by
the Company recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for convertible notes.

The option reserve represents the fair value of the actual
or estimated number of unexercised share options granted
to employees and consultants of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for equity
settled share-based payments.

The Group’s capital reserve represented the amount of retained
earnings of Vitop China applied for the increase in its registered
and paid-up capital.

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations applicable to
WOFE, Vitop China, being the wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, is required to transfer 10% of their profit after tax, if
any, to the statutory reserve until the balance of the fund reach
50% of their respective registered capital. Subject to certain
restrictions as set out in the relevant PRC regulations, the
statutory reserve may be used to offset against their respective
accumulated losses.

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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27. RESERVES (continued) 27. {8 (=)

Company

e /N

At 1 July 2011 RZE——&
+HA—H 75,211 29 3,304 (67,290) 11,254
Loss for the year REEEE - - - (5,898) (5,898)
Issue of shares BT 69,227 - - - 69,227
Converted convertible notes ~ E# AR E
into shares BkH 30,344 = (3,304) = 27,040
At30June2012and 1Juy WH-ZE—-F<A
2012 =tAR=-ZE—Z=
F+A—H 174,782 29 - (73,188) 101,623
Loss for the year AEEER - = - (4,340) (4,340)
At 30 June 2013 RZE—=F
~NAZTH 174,782 29 = (77,528) 97,283

The share premium account of the Company mainly includes:
(i) shares issued at a premium; and (ii) the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries
and the value of the underlying net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group Reorganisation. Under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman lIslands, the share premium account
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.
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For the year ended 30 June 2013 BHE_ZT—=F"A=1+HILFE
28. COMMITMENTS 28. & iE
(A) Operating lease commitment (A) BEHFRIE
The Group leases certain of its offices, factory and AEERBIAIREGECEHERH
machinery and equipment under non-cancellable HEEETETE ITHEKSEK
operating lease arrangements with lease terms ranging B HEFHNT —ZE2RF R
from one to five years. As at 30 June 2013, the total —E-—=FXA=1tH RBREFRA
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable BB E AN RRFER S
operating leases are payable as follows: BEWT
Group
xEMHE

Within one year —FR 1,180 1,145
In the second to fifth year E_EERF 642 1,499
1,822 2,644
The Company did not have any significant operating lease ARABRHMEARL EAMERLETH
arrangements as at the end of the reporting period (2012: ERH(ZE——F ) -
Nil).
29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 20. R RER|/
Neither the Group nor the Company had any significant RBEHR  REE AR\ W&
contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting period. EARAAE-

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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30. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, reserves and retained profits.

Gearing ratio

The directors review the capital structure regularly. As part
of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. During
the year ended 30 June 2013, the Group’s strategy, which
was unchanged from previous years, was to reduce the
gearing ratio. The ratio is calculated based on total debt and
shareholders equity.

The gearing ratio at the year end was as follows:

Rt %5 30 RO &E

=EXNA=1tHItEE

BE-_ZT—

30. BXEEEE

AEBEREANBRERBRREHRE
B REMEDRESERDMNG R
RIEBEARRBIARIEE AR A o

AEENEARBREER KA QR E
BAEGED ETHBREETRA &
B MR A o

BxfafRt=

ESTHEHNEARRE - ERAZERN—
BB %%A%F§$&$&ﬁ BE
AEBANRR RBEE-_FT—=FA
=ZTHLEFE AEERRE (RBEF
EHLI EE() RIEEREARBLR -
BEARBHRBREHEBR R RERR
oo

RERBBHNERBBLEET:

Total debt B
Shareholders’ equity % R =
Gearing ratio BEARBENLE

24,616 21,070
105,170 117,571
23.41% 17.92%
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For the year ended 30 June 2013 BHE_ZT—=F"A=1+HILFE

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS S1.FAZEALTRS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, B A 7 B 765 i 2% HL th 2B 1 BT 4 B8 25 ) -
the Group had the following material transactions with certain AEBEHAETHEALTETTINERR
related parties: Z
(A) (A)

Rental expenses paid to HFATATHHESHAS
— A minority equity holder of a — K22 R BT & A & HY D &%
subsidiary of the Company  #REAH A (i) 467 450
Notes: Bt 5
(i)  The Group’s transaction with a non-controlling interest of a (i) AEBEEARD AN BA B RIEERER
subsidiary of the Company was made in accordance with AH#ETT B R 5 12 R AE B 1 5F /9 5 8
the mutually agreed terms. 170
(B) Compensation of key management B) FEXEEXEBTEARNSE
personnel of the Group: =

Total remuneration of directors and FREERHMFBER
other members of key management A B )& BN 4258
during the year

— Short term employee benefits —REEERF 1,340 1,161
— Pension scheme contribution —RIRE B H R 44 24
1,384 1,185

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(A)

(B)

Categories of financial instruments

Rt %5 30 RO &E

BHE_ZT-—=F A=1+HIFE

32.&pTH

(A)

&I RER

Group
FEE

Financial assets MHEEE
Available-for sales investments AHEERE 24,336 28,596
Trade receivables B 5 e ER X 1,415 1,355
Deposits and other receivables 1 R E A EURER K 56,418 44,579
Cash and bank balances BE MBTER 27,567 41,236
109,736 115,766
Financial liabilities MBAR
Trade payables B 5 EMERR 6,165 6,175
Accrued liabilities and other FEET B & R H i R ER R
payables 8,718 5,616
Deposits received BUWET & 9,733 9,279
24,616 21,070
Financial risk management objectives and B) eMEMEEHERBE

policies

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are market risk (including interest rate risk,
foreign exchange risk and other price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The management reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial
risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates,
interest rates and equity prices.

Market risk exposures are measured by sensitivity
analysis. There has been no change to the Group’s
exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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32.&€mIT R »
B) eMEKEEREHRERBEK

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B) Financial risk management objectives and

106

policies (continued) (&)
Interest rate risk management FI £ 7 b & 22

Except as disclosed below, the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s cash flow interest-rate risk mainly arises from
bank balances. The Group regularly seeks out the most
favourable interest rates available for its bank balances.
Bank balances issued at variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. Information relating to the
interest rates and terms of the Group’s bank balances are
disclosed in Notes 22. As at 30 June 2013, if the market
interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, post-tax loss for the
year would have been HK$138,000 (2012: HK$206,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
income on bank balances and cash net off with higher/
lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

The Group’s financial liabilities are issued at fixed interest
rate which merely comprise convertible notes and finance
lease. Accordingly, management considers the Group has
no significant fair value interest rate risk from financial
liabilities.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risks.

Foreign exchange risk management

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. The Group’s sales and purchases are
denominated primarily in Renminbi, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. The Group does not have
any formal hedging policy.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the reporting date are as follows:

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 2.&MTH»
(B) Financial risk management objectives and B) £eMEMEEAERKEK
policies (continued) (%)

Assets BE

RMB AR 86,165 99,882
Liabilities BfE

RMB ARE 23,635 36,870
Sensitivity analysis on foreign currency risk I B B B SR 5 T
management

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% T REFF AN& B B T K AR R SN
increase and decrease in the Hong Kong dollars against FHE R EZBL% MUK E AR A3
the relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate FEERABREINE R KA
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key MEBRELL R A% EAERERT
management personnel and represents management’s AT EE A 12 IR A (B R B o BURK
assessment of the reasonably possible change in EoMeEmRERINETEER
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes I E - WZEEERHRNKRE
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary HEER FEHS%E B R 7% o SRR
items, and adjusts their translation at the period end for EoMMeEINIEREAERA
a 5% change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity BINETEFIEME SR - MAEBE K
analysis includes external loans as well as loans to foreign ALAEHE A EA T BB I E
operations within the Group where the denomination BEtE - TXHHEBHEBERAB TR
of the loan is in a currency other than the currency of 1E R & B ES %M % I R R A &
the lender or the borrower. A negative number below B WB LA HEEBEENS &
indicates a decrease in profit where the Hong Kong e HBARNSEES M~
dollars strengthen 5% against the relevant currency. For DK RS A IE S -

a 5% weakening of the Hong Kong dollars against the
relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit and the balances below would be
positive.

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Sensitivity analysis on foreign currency risk
management (continued)

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 32.&€MITH»
(B) Financial risk management objectives and B) eMEAMEEARRBE
policies (continued) (%)

S B I B R B B B AT

(&)

Impact of RMB AREHFE
Profit and loss* i ) & B 18 3,127 3,151
# This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on # FERBUAREEERN® R

receivables and payables denominated in RMB.

Other price risks

The Group is exposed to price risks through its holding of
non-current investments.

Other price sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to price risks at the reporting date.
If the market price of the non-current investments has
been 10% higher/lower while all other variables were
held constant, the profit for the year ended 30 June
2013 would increase/decrease by HK$2,433,600 (2012:
HK$2,860,000) for the Group. This is mainly due to
changes in fair value of non-current investments.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Credit risk

As at 30 June 2013, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure that sales
of products are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history and the Group performs period credit
evaluations of its customers. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt and debt investments at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies. Other than
concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the
Group does not have any other significant concentration
of credit risk

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet
its current obligations when they fall due.

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through
the maintenance of prudent ratio regarding to the liquidity
structure of the overall assets, liabilities loans and
commitments as the Group. The Group also monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operation and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. In addition, standby credit facilities are established
to provide contingent liquidity support.

(B) &t

Wik Wb Annual Report 20131:”1\“!#.

Rt %5 3 = Bl o

BHE_ZT-—=F A=1+HIFE

=

mR

MEEERRBR

(%)
= E R

R-EBE—=FA=1+H £&E
AR BUFREBITE T E R
BEIANBEREERR RH£AH
BRAKREBOERYEEE
BT SR8 -

AEERE - ERRERERIH
ETEELERINTR  MALE
EeEMAEERRPNEERR-
BEAN AEER S ERE ARG R
A BAERE S EAREFEREN
A EEEE AR AR S E S
BIFH R AR EBREE LT
H ARREZRAAKENEE
[ B B R AR A o

AR SHF BB EE T R%
BRETREEEFRORT  BOR
BESWNEERARER -BRRRD
B MR ESEEENRNEE
RITMAZEESTRERIN A&
Y EEMAEMBENEEETE

B o
MEEEm

MEBE SRR IEANE B RERNR
BRHEENRAR -

AEEEREEFEASEERER
E BB BEXRAENRDES
REHEENRELER FERER
HRBEERR AEETEER
REFRERRAEEEMRNE R
ERBFTRNKE  UBNAEE
MEENMRERSREKBDNF
BN AEBETRIBREER
BARKESRDES R

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

REENERERA T *109
L A,



A, = — = 2 225 A oo AL A o A Al

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2013

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

RA %5 30 R B &E

BE-T-SFAASTHLTE

32.&€mIT R »
(B) 2B ERAEREE

(#&)
MEBELEE (8)

TRHANAEEHBABENBTA
MEIME - WRIDRBEAEERA]
REREEMHRENRFAS
BUBAENRFTRRERNER
o pRBEMNERASHRER

= °

At 30 June 2013 RZE—=F
~NA=1H
Non-interest bearing TETE - 24,616 - 24,616 24,616
At 30 June 2012 R-_F——F
ANA=1H
Non-interest bearing D) - 21,070 = 21,070 21,070
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 2.&MTH»
(B) Financial risk management objectives and (B) £ EEEEREB KR BE
policies (continued) (%)

Fair value of financial instruments LT ANAFE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities WBEERMEEENATFEIZRNA

are determined as follows: THAETE:

(i)  the fair value of financial assets and financial () REZEEZINEGHEREER
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and ERREMBERINUBEE
traded on active liquid markets are determined with ERMBEBENAFEENZ
reference to quoted market prices; and ERWMmGEKRETE &

(i) the fair value of other financial assets and (il BB BEELRMBEEN
financial liabilities are determined in accordance RNREFEDBEATE RN
with generally accepted pricing models based on BMmisXamMERBRLFER
discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates BAEBENTRRERESD
from observable current market transactions as M AR EEAEE -
input.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of BEERAE NEREAYVBEHRRALEE

financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the MU EERMEEENEREESRE

consolidated financial statements approximate their fair HERNFEES-

values.

b4
33. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING 3. HEMERER
PERIOD
There are no events after the reporting period of material RERBIWEERNEIE -
importance.
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Summary of Financial Information

Year ended 30 June
B#EXA=1THLEE

Revenue g 19,823 20,484 27,217 67,540 88,062
Loss before income tax BRETE I AIEE (14,588) (20,039) (23,502) (18,898) (6,132)
Income tax expenses FTiSfif - - = (166) (172)
Loss for the year rEEER (14,588)  (20,039)  (23,502)  (19,064) (6,304)
Attributable to: TH AL

Owners of the Company KABHEAB A (14,404) (19,860) (23,315) (19,104) (6,440)
Non-controlling interests I e i 2 (184) (179) (187) 40 136
(14,588) (20,039) (23,502) (19,064) (6,304)

At 30 June

BAB=+H

Assets and liabilities BEREBE
Total assets BERE 131,511 140,550 87,653 85,888 92,834
Total liabilities BERR (24,616) (21,070) (55,822) (36,279) (25,623)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR B (1,725) (1,909) (2,088) (2,275) (2,235)
Equity attributable to RNAEIHEE AL

Owners of the Company W 105,170 117,571 29,743 47,334 64,976

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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